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Reporting period Comparative period

Financial yearended 30 June 2023 Financial year ended 30 June 2022

Results for announcement to the market

Percentage
change Amount
% $m
Revenue from ordinary activities up 4.3% to 9,626.4
Profitfrom ordinary activities after tax down 3.7% to 524.6
Net profit attributable to members of JB Hi-Fi Limited down 3.7% to 524.6
Dividend information
Franked
Amount per amount per
security security

Final Dividend 115.0¢ 115.0¢
Interim dividend 197.0¢ 197.0¢
Record date for determining entitlements to the dividend:

e finaldividend 25 August 2023

e interimdividend 24 February 2023
Dividend paymentdate:

e finaldividend 8 September 2023

e interimdividend 10 March 2023
Net Tangible Assets Per Security

2023 2022
$ $

Net tangible assets per security 3.18 2.00

Net tangible assets include theright-of-use assets recognised under AASB 16 Leases.
Other information
Thisreportis based on the consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Deloitte.

Fora brief explanation ofthe figures above please refer to the Announcementon theresults for the year ended 30
June 2023 and the notes to the financial statements.
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JB Hi-Fi Limited
Governance Statement

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

JB Hi-FiLimited (“the Company” or “JBHi-Fi”) recognises the importance of governance matters and the Board
continuallyreviews and monitors developments in corporate governance which are relevantto the Group (being the
consolidated entity consisting ofthe Company and the entities itcontrols). The Company’s Governance Statement
is set out below. The Company also recognises the importance of environmental and social matters to its
shareholders, suppliersand customers and has released its 2023 Sustainability Reportto the ASX at the same time
as this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The directors and managementofthe Group are committed to ensuring thatthe Group’s business is conducted
ethically and in accordance with high standards of corporate governance.

The Board believes that:

. the Group’s policies and practices comply in all material respects with the 4th edition ofthe ASX Corporate
Governance Council Principles and Recommendations (the “ASX Recommendations”); and

. during the 2023 financial year, the Company has been compliantwith the spiritofthe principles containedin
the ASX Recommendations.

This Corporate Governance Statement has been approved by the Board and is effective as at 14 August 2023.

THE BOARD
Role

The primary role ofthe Board is to protectand enhance long-term sustainable shareholder value. The Board is
accountable to shareholdersfor the performance ofthe Company, and itdirects and monitors the business and
affairs ofthe Group on behalfofshareholders.

The Board’s responsibilities include: overseeing the business and affairs ofthe Group and demonstrating leadership
of the Group; definingthe Group’s purpose and approving the Group’s statementof values and code of conductso
as to underpinthedesired culture within the Group and overseeing management’s implementation ofthese values;
setting (in consultation with management) the strategic and financial objectives ofthe Group and overseeing
management’s implementation ofthese objectives; approving the appointmentand replacementof senior executives
including the Group CEO; monitoring the performance of managementand, where required, challenging
management and holdingitto account; approving the adoption ofthe Group’s major corporate governance policies;
ensuring thatthe Group has in place an appropriate risk management framework (for both financial and non-financial
risk); overseeing thereliability and integrity of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and financial management
and disclosure practicesand systems; overseeing the Group’s process for making disclosure to the market;
approvingthe Group’s remuneration framework and satisfyingitselfthatthe Group’s remuneration policies are
aligned with the Group’s values, strategic objectives and risk appetite; and the establishmentofa formal and
transparent procedure for the selection, appointmentand review of directors.

The Group Chief Executive Officer, who is accountable to the Board, is responsible formanaging, directing and
promoting the profitable operation and developmentof the Group.

A copy ofthe Board Charter can be found on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/ via
the “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

Composition of the Board / Selection and appointment of directors

Details of each ofthe Directors are set out on pages 11 and 12 ofthis Report.

The Board seeks to ensure that the combination of its members provides an appropriate range of experience, skills,
diversity, knowledge and perspective to enableitto carry out its obligations and responsibilities.

The Board believes that having arange of different skills, backgrounds, experience and genders ensures adiversity
of viewpoints which facilitate effective governance and decision making.
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The Company believes thatskills and experience in the areas listed in the matrix below are desirable for the Board
to performits role effectively. The Board considers thatits currentcomposition possesses an effective blend of
these skills and experience which enables itand its Committees to effectively govern the business, operate
effectively and add value in the contextofthe Company’s strategy.

No. of
Skill/Experience | Description Directors
Executive / Holds or held an executive leadership position in apublicly listed company or
Management large professional services firm. 8/8
Experience
Retail Holds or held an executive leadership position in apublicly listed or large
private retail company or has been an NED of a publicly listed or large private 7/8
retail company for atleast 3 years.
Financial Professional accounting qualifications, experience as the CEO, CFO or Chair 8/8
Acumen of the Audit Committee ofa publicly listed company or large private company.
Property Holds or held an executive leadership position with specific, or ultimate,
responsibility for property in alargeretailer or is/was a non-executive director 6/8
in a publicly listed orlarge private property company.
Online/Digital Holds or held an executive leadership position in adigital or technology
company or having ultimate responsibility for, or specific focus on, 6/8
online/digital in a publicly listed company or large private retail company.
Other Listed Is, orhas been, a directorofone or more other publicly listed companies for
Board at leastoneyear (other than JB Hi-Fi Limited). 6/8
Experience/
Governance
Risk Membership of the risk management committees of at least two publicly listed
Management companies, or executive experience anticipating and identifying risks and 7/8
monitoring the effectiveness of both financial and non-financial risk
management frameworks and controls.
People & Culture | Experienceas a Chair, NED, CEO or seniorexecutivein apublicly listed or
large private company or professional services firmin overseeing workplace 8/8
culture, people management, developmentand succession planning, setting
remuneration frameworks and promoting diversity &inclusion.
Strategy / Experiencein a publicly listed company, large private companyor large
Mergers & professional services firmin understanding and defining strategicobjectives,
écq F’t'sl't'O”S/ assessing business plans, mergers & acquisitions/ capital management. 8/8
apita
Management
Sustainability, Understanding and experience in social responsibility and sustainability
Corporate Social | initiatives, managementofworkplace health & safety, community
8/8

Responsibility
and Community
Engagement

relations/workplace giving.

The Company maintains a majority of non-executive directors on its Board. The Board currently comprises eight
directors, being six non-executive directors, including the Chairman, and two executive directors, being the
Group Chief Executive Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer. The Company has written agreements with
each director settingoutthe terms of their appointment. Apartfrom the Group Chief Executive Officer, directors are
subject to shareholder re-election by rotation atleast every three years. The Company provides shareholderswith
all material informationin its possessionrelevantto the election orre-election ofadirector.
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A copy ofthe Company’s Board Composition & Succession Policy, whichincludes the procedure for the selection
and appointmentofdirectors, can be found on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/ via
the “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections. The Board will undertake appropriate checks before
appointingany person, or putting forward to shareholdersa candidate for election, as adirector, including checks to
ensure thatthe candidate has sufficientcapacity to performtherole.

Details ofthe directors as at the date of this Report, including further information about their experience, expertise
and term of office, are set outin the Directors’Report.

Independence

The Company considers thateach of its directors (includingthe Chairman) is independent, with the exception of
Terry Smart (Group Chief Executive Officer) and Nick Wells (Group Chief Financial Officer).

The Board regards directors as independentdirectors ifthey: do nothave a material relationship with the
Company other than solely as a result of being a director; are independentof management; and do nothave any
business orotherrelationship that could compromise theindependent exercise of theirjudgementand their ability
to actin the best interests ofthe Company. Theindependence of each directoris considered on a case-by-case
basis.

Richard Uechtritzwas Chief Executive Officer of the Company between July 2000 and May 2010 and a consultant
to the Company from May 2010 to November 2013. Given the passage oftime, the Board is ofthe opinionthat
Richard is an independentdirector, and that neither these previous roles, nor his relationship with current
management, compromises his ability to exerciseindependent, unfettered judgementor actin the best interests of
the Company.

Beth Laughton is currently anon-executive director and chairofthe audit, compliance & risk management
committee of GPT Funds ManagementLimited (“GPTFM”), the responsible entity for the GPT Wholesale Shopping
Centre Fund. Beth will leave these roles on 8 November 2023. Mark Powell was a non-executive director and chair
of the ESG committee of Kiwi Property Group Limited until 19 May 2023. The Board notes thatthe GPT Wholesale
Shopping Centre Fund and Kiwi Property Group have ownership interests in shopping centres in which the Group
currently leases stores. The Board is, and throughoutthe year has been, ofthe opinion that Beth and Mark are
independentdirectorson thebasis thatindividual leasing arrangements withinthe Group, GPTFM and Kiwi
Property Group are generally determined ata managerial level rather than Board level.

In addition, the Company’s internal protocols provide that Beth and Mark would be excluded fromany discussion
and decision making where any conflictofinterestarises between their respectiveroles as directors ofthe
Company and of GPTFM/Kiwi Property Group.

Geoff Roberts was previously apartner at Deloitte until 2015. During the period that Geoffwas a partner, Deloitte
were the appointed auditors ofthe Group, however atno stage during the term of his partnership was Geoff
involvedin the provision ofauditor other services to the Group. The Board is therefore of the opinion that Geoffis
an independentdirector.

Conflict of interest

Directors must keep the Board advised, on an ongoingbasis, of any interests that could potentially conflict with
those of the Company. Directors are required to promptly disclose to the Board interests in contracts, other
directorships or offices held, possible related party transactions and any other material personal interests in a matter
relating to the Company’s affairs. If a material conflictofinterestarises, thedirector concerneddoes notreceive the
relevantBoard papers, is notpresentat the meeting whilstthe item is considered and takes no partin decision
making.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly, dependenton business requirements. Priorto any meeting, the directors receive all
necessary Board papers. As well as holding regular Board meetings, the Board also meets to comprehensively
review business plans and the strategy ofthe Group.
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Access toinformation and independent advice

Each director has the rightof access to all relevant Company information and to the Group’s executives. Subject
to prior consultation with the Chairman, each director may seek independent professionaladvice atthe Company’s
expense.

Professional development of directors

The Company recognises the need forits directors to develop and maintain the skills and knowledge needed to
performtheirroles as directors effectively. The Company periodically reviews the need for directors to undertake
professional developmentto maintain the skills and knowledge necessary to performtheirroles. Thisincludes,
where necessary, management (including the Group Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary & General
Counsel) and external advisors providing the directors with briefings and advice on developments in both the law
and currentpracticein areas relevantto the Company and theirrole as directors (including, for example, corporate
governance, accounting and remuneration). Individual directors also take advantage of professional development
opportunities provided by third parties such as the Australian Institute of Company Directors and major accounting
and legal firms.

The Company also has an induction programfor new directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Details ofthe Committees established by the Board are set out below.

Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Board has an Auditand Risk Management Committee.

The Auditand Risk Management Committee is charged primarily with assistingthe Board in its:

. oversightofthereliability, adequacy and integrity of the Group’s financial management, financial reporting and
disclosure, its related non-financial reporting and disclosure practices, and its financial reporting framework;

. oversightoftheindependence, performance, appointmentand removal of the external auditor;

. review ofthe Group’s policies on riskoversightand management, and in discharging its responsibility to satisfy
itselfthat a sound systemofrisk managementand internal control has been implemented to manage the
material risks affecting the Group’s businesses, including environmental, social, governance, health & safety
and cyber-security risks and compliance with all applicable laws; and

. review ofthe Group’s plans, actionsand reporting in relation to sustainability.

A copy ofthe Audit and Risk Management Committee Charter can be found on the Company’s investor website
at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/viathe “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

During the 2023 financial year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee comprised the following non-executive
directors, all ofwhomwere independentand haverelevantfinancial, commercial and risk managementexperience,
including an independentchair who is notthe Chair ofthe Board:

. Beth Laughton: Chair of Committee;

. Mark Powell;

. Melanie Wilson; and

¢  Geoff Roberts.

Details ofthe background and experience of each ofthese non-executive directorsareincluded in the Directors'
Report.

The Auditand Risk Management Committee meets regularly. Details of the meetings held and members’
attendance during the 2023 financial year are listed in the Directors’ Report. Directors who are not members ofthe
Audit and Risk Management Committee may attend any Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting.

Remuneration and Nominations Committee

The Board has a Remuneration and Nominations Committee.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee is charged primarily with:
. reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding the framework, structure and quantum of
remuneration of executive officers and non-executive directors; and
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. reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding Board succession planning, the
appointmentand re-appointmentofnon-executive directors, the induction and continuing professional
developmentof non-executive directors, the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its
committees and directors, and the succession ofthe Group CEO and other senior executives.

A copy ofthe Remuneration and Nominations Committee Charter can be found on the Company’s investor
website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/via the “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

During the 2023 financial year, the Remuneration and Nominations Committee comprised the following directors,
each ofwhomare considered by the Company to be independent:

e Stephen Goddard: Chair of Committee;

e Beth Laughton;and

¢  Mark Powell.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee meets as required. Details of the meetings held and members’
attendance during the 2023 financial year are listed in the Directors’ Report. Directors who are not members ofthe
Remuneration and Nominations Committee may attend a Committee meeting at the invitation ofthe Chairman when
considered appropriate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable directly to the Board, through the Chair, on all matters to do with the proper
functioning ofthe Board.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Group acknowledges the need for directors, executives and employees to observe the highestethical
standards of corporate behaviour. The Group has adopted a Code of Conductto provide directors, executives and
employees with guidance on whatthe Group deems to be acceptable behaviour. The Group will ensure that the
Board and/or Auditand Risk Management Committee is informed of any material incidents in breach ofthis Code.

A copy ofthe Code of Conductcan be found on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/
via the “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY AND ANTI-BRIBERY, CORRUPTION & FRAUD POLICY

The Group has a Whistleblower Policy and an Anti-Bribery, Corruption & Fraud Policy. The Group will ensure that
the Board and/or Auditand Risk Management Committee is informed ofany material incidentsreported underorin
breach ofthese policies.

Copies ofthese policies are available on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhificom.au/via the
“Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

DIVERSITY

The Group recognises theimportance of diversity and values the competitive advantage that is gained from a
diverserange of skills, backgrounds, experience and gender atall levels of the organisation. The Group has a

Diversity Policy which is available on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.auvia the

“Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

The Group has a Group Diversity Strategy for both the JB Hi-Fiand The Good Guys businesses. This strategy is
focussed on identifying and growinginternal talent, underpinned by common and meaningful competency-based
criteria. The Group Diversity Strategy and associated programof work is fundamental to enabling diversity by
supporting women’s progression to leadership roles, and is further supported by work to identify and remove
potential barriers to this progression.

Details ofthe Group’s diversity initiatives, measurable objectives and performance are set out in the Group’s
Sustainability Reportwhich can be found on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/in the
“Corporate Social Responsibility” section.
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SAFETY

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe work environmentfor all its team members, contractors,
customers and visitors. Details ofthe Group’s health and safety policies and performance are set outin the Group’s
Sustainability Reportwhich can be found on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/in the
“Corporate Social Responsibility” section.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Directors’ current shareholdings are detailed in the Directors’ Report and are updated by notification to the ASX
as required. The Board has approved and adopted a Securities Trading Policy settingouttherules and procedures
applyingto directors, officersand employees dealingin securities.

All Key Management Personnel (being all Non-Executive Directors and the Executive KMP listed on page 34), are
subject to the Company’s Minimum Shareholding Policies which require:

. Non-Executive Directors to hold the equivalentof 1.0 times base Board fees in shares;

. the Group CEO to hold the equivalent of 1.5 times fixed pay in shares; and

. other Executive KMP to hold the equivalentof 1.0 times fixed pay in shares.

This level of shareholding is required to be built over 5 years from the introduction ofthe policy in FY2019 (or
appointment, if later).

Subject to certain specific and limited exceptions, directors and key employees may only trade in the Company’s
shares, and any other securities of the Company, during designated Trading Windows. These four-week Trading
Windows follow the release of the Company’s Final Results (August/September), Interim Results (February/March)
and the Annual General Meeting (October/November). Directors and Group executives arerequired to obtain the
Chairman’s consentin advance ofany such tradingand any transaction conducted by directors in shares ofthe
Company is notified to the ASX.

A copy ofthe Securities Trading Policy can be found on the Company’s investor website at
https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/ viathe “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

INTEGRITY OF REPORTING

The Company has controls designed to ensure the integrity of its financial reportingand thatthe Company
complies with all regulatory requirements relevantto this reporting.

In accordance with the Corporations Actand the ASX Recommendations, the Group Chief Executive Officer and
Group Chief Financial Officer have stated in writing to the Board that, in their opinion:

(a) the financial records ofthe Group (consisting ofthe Company and the entities it controlled during the financial
year) forthe financial year ended 30 June 2023 have been properlymaintained inaccordance with section 286
of the Corporations Act;

(b) the financial statements for thefinancial year and the notes required by the accounting standardsgive atrue
and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position and performance, and comply with the accounting
standards;

(c) the statements in (a) and (b) above are founded on asound systemofrisk managementand internal control
which is operating effectively; and

(d) subsequentto 30 June 2023, no changes or other matters have arisen thatwould have a material effect on the
operation oftherisk managementand internal control systems ofthe Group.

The Company'’s full year financial statements and remuneration report are subject to an annual audit by an
independent, professional auditor who also reviews the Company’s half-yearly financial statements. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee oversees this process on behalfof the Board. Deloitte has been the Company’s
external auditor since 2002. The audit engagementpartner is rotated every five years.

Information on procedures for the selection and appointmentofthe external auditor and for the rotation of
external audit engagement partners can be found in the Charter of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
on the Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/viathe “Investors” and “Corporate
Governance” sections.
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The Company alsohas aprocess in place to verify the integrity ofany periodiccorporate reportthatitreleases to the
market thatis notaudited or reviewed by theindependentauditor. Such reports are written by the relevant members
ofthe Company’s senior managementteam and are then independently reviewed by appropriate executives to
ensurethe information is accurate and stated assumptionsor opinionsarereasonable. Data is verified by reference
to areliable source of information andinformationis checked to ensure thatit is consistentwith any audited reports
where relevant. A ‘third line’check is then completed by an independentinternal review team. Finally, thereports
are reviewed in detail by the Company’s Auditand Risk Management Committee and then by the full Board which
must formally authorise the release of any such reportto the market.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE

The Company seeks to providerelevantand timely information to its shareholders and is committed to fulfilling its
continuous disclosure obligations.

The Board has approved a Continuous Disclosure Policy to ensure thatthe procedures for identifying and disclosing
material price sensitiveinformationin accordance with the Corporations Actand ASX Listing Rules are clearly
articulated. This policy sets out the obligations of employees in respect of such information. The Group Chief
Executive Officer, in consultation with the Chairman where appropriate, is responsible forcommunication with the
ASX.

A copy ofthe Continuous Disclosure Policy can be found on the Company'’s investor website at
https://investors.jphifi.com.au/viathe “Investors” and “Corporate Governance” sections.

The Company ensures that the Board receives copies of all material market announcements before, or promptly
after, they have been made.

The Company releases a copy ofany substantive investor or analystpresentation to the ASX ahead of the
presentation.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS
The Company communicates to shareholders, potential investors and other interested parties in the following ways:
(a) by making information available on its website forinvestors at https://investors.jphifi.com.au, including:
e an overview ofits business;
¢ information aboutthe Company’s directorsand senior executives;
e the Company’s Constitution;
e the Company’s Board and Committee Charters;
e the Company’s core corporate governance policies;
e the Company’s CodeofConduct;
e acalendarofkey corporate events;
e asummary ofthe Company’s dividend policyand its dividend paymenthistory;
e details ofhowinvestors can contactthe Company and its shareregistry; and
e theinformation setoutin paragraphs(b)and (c) below.

(b) initsdisclosurestothe ASX (including, amongstotherthings, its Annual Report, financial results, trading
updates, Sustainability Reportand investor presentations);

(c) atits Annual General Meeting and the associated Notice of AGM;

(d) through its engagementprogram with institutional investors and analysts, including post-results briefings;
(e) through its engagementwith the Australian Shareholders Association;

(f) through its engagementwith proxy advisers and the Australian Council of Superannuation Investors;

(g) where appropriate, by responding to questions submitted viaits investor website; and

(h) through its engagementwith the financial media.

Shareholders can elect to receive communications from, and send communications to, the Company’s share
registry electronically. Theregistry also gives shareholders the opportunity to manage their accountdetails and
holdings electronically. Shareholders are also able to send communications to the Company and receive
responses to these communications electronically.
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The Company has an investorrelations programwhich involves regular meetings with significantcurrentand
potential investors, and with analysts and the financial media.

The Company holds an Annual General Meeting to which all shareholders areinvited. In 2022, the Company held a
“hybrid” Annual General Meeting, allowing shareholders to attend eitherin personoronline, and the Company will
hold its AGM in this formatin FY2023. All resolutions at Annual General Meetings are decided by a poll rather than
a showofhands. Shareholders who are unable to attend are able to appointaproxy to attend and vote or,
alternatively, can vote by proxy in advance ofthe Meeting or online duringthe meeting. The Company ensures that
the external auditor attends its Annual General Meetings and is available to answer shareholder questions about
the conductof the audit and the preparation and contentofthe auditor’s report.

Further detail is set outin the Company’s Shareholder Communication Policy which can be found on the
Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/via the “Investors” and “Corporate Governance”
sections.

RISK IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT

The Group’s policy isto consider the balance ofrisk and reward, as far as practicable, in order to optimise thereturns
gained fromits business activities, and to meet the expectations of its shareholders, other key stakeholdersand the
broader community.

The Board has delegated to the Audit and Risk Management Committee responsibility for overseeing the
implementation of policies and procedures aimed at ensuring thatthe Group conducts its operationsin a manner
that adequately manages risk to protectits people, the environmentand the Group’s assets and reputation. The
Group has an effective risk management framework in line with ISO31000 which enables managementto identify
and manage risk appropriately. The Committee regularly reviews and revises this framework and the Board reviews
the framework at least annually to satisfy itselfthatit continues to be sound and thatthe Group is operating with due
regard to the risk appetite set by the Board. Therisk management framework was lastreviewed by the Board in
November 2022.

Risk identification and managementis also akey focus of the executive and management teams.

The Group does nothaveaformal internal auditfunction. Instead, risk identification and managementis managed
on a day-to-day basis by a dedicated risk managementand business assurance team. The risk managementand
business assurance team evaluate and look to continually improve the effectiveness ofthe Group’s governance,
risk managementand internal controlprocesses.

A copy ofthe Group’s Risk Management Policy can be found on the Company’s investor website at
https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/viathe “Investors”and “Corporate Governance” sections.

SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISKS

The Group recognises the material environmental and social risks that are relevant to its activities and takes action
to managethoserisks. A Group Sustainability Plan has been established to provide afoundational framework to
integrate sustainability and the management ofthese risks into the operations and strategic priorities of the
businesses. Governance and oversight ofthe approach and progress is provided by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. Further detail about these environmental and social risks is setoutin the Operating and
Financial Review.

The Company has released its 2023 Sustainability Reportto the ASX and this Reportcan be found on the
Company’s investor website at https://investors.jbhifi.com.au/in the “Corporate Social Responsibility” section. This
Report provides disclosure around the material sustainability-related issues for the Group’s businesses and how the
Group plans to prioritise and manage these going forward.
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OUR PURPOSE & VALUES
The Group’s purposeis to connect customers with the products and services that make life better.

The Group aims to do this through its two iconic and trusted retail brands, JB Hi-Fi (a leading retailer of technology
and consumer electronics) and The Good Guys (aleading retailer ofhome appliances and consumer electronics).

Set out below are the Values which the Group and all of its team members are guided by in their activities.

Passion - We lovewhat we do. We:

e are passionate aboutour people, our customers and our products

e showenthusiasmand take pridein our work

o striveto exceed our customers’ expectations and create amazing experiences

Respect and Empower - We value and respecteveryone. We:
e empower, supportand trustour people

e treat everyonefairly and withoutdiscrimination

e actwith humility, listen openly, and value others’opinions

Integrity - We act honestly anddo therightthing. We:
e acceptresponsibilityforouractions

e actlawfully, ethically and responsibly

e calloutthingsthataren’tright

Innovative — We embrace change and adaptquickly. We:
e neverstand still and constantly evolve

e are entrepreneurial and look for opportunities

e are notafraid to fail and we learn from our mistakes

Driven — We are focused and deliberate. We:

. are results oriented and deliver on the things we committo
. make decisions based on facts and experience

. focus on productivity and efficiency

Social Conscience — We care about our people, our community and our environment. We:
. give back to the communities where we live and work

. ensure our business is safe, inclusive and welcoming for everyone

. striveto minimise ourimpacton the environment

Authentic — We are diverse and embrace individuality. We:
. are informal and don’ttake ourselves too seriously

. are energetic and enthusiastic

. have fun, enjoy ourselves and celebrate success

BOARD AND EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE

JB Hi-Fi monitors and evaluates the performance ofits Board, Board Committees, individual directors and
executives in order to fairly review and continuously improve Board and management effectiveness.

In June/July of each year, each director completes awritten board review and assessmentdocument, and
subsequentone-on-oneinterviews then take place between the Chair and each director which cover:

e review of Board performance as a whole;

e review ofthe individual director's performance;

e the director’s ongoing capacity to continue to performtheir role with the Company; and

e review ofthe Chair’s performance.

The Chairreports back to the Board on the discussions and the Board considers any issues as necessary.

Directors may also discuss the Chair’s performance with the Chair ofthe Company’s Auditand Risk Management
Committee, who will reportback to the Board if necessary.

The Chair provides informal feedback to directors throughoutthe year as necessary.

Each Board Committee reviews its performance and reports the results ofthe review to the Board. Where
necessary, recommendations will be made to the Board forimprovingthe effectiveness ofthe relevant Committee.
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Review of the Group CEO’s performance is evaluated by the Chair, with ultimate oversightby the Board. This
involves an assessmentagainst both financialand non-financial performance measures. All other Group executives
are evaluated by the Group CEO including assessmentagainst both financialand non-financial performance
measures. The Group CEO provides asummary of the evaluation of each executive to the Board and the
Remuneration and Nominations Committee.

Evaluation of the performance of the Board, Board Committees, individual directors and Group executives has
been conducted in respectof the 2023 financial year.

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

Directors’ fees

The details ofremuneration paid to each non-executive director during the financial year and the principles behind
the setting of such remuneration areincluded in the Remuneration Report.

Executive KMP remuneration

The amountof remuneration, both monetary and non-monetary, for the executives who had authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities ofthe Group during the financialyear, and the
principles behind the setting of such remuneration, areincluded in the Remuneration Report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of JB Hi-Fi Limited (the “Company”) submit herewith the annual financial report ofthe consolidated
entity consistingofthe Company and the entities it controlled (the “Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June
2023. In orderto comply with the provisions ofthe Corporations Act 2001, the Directors reportas follows:

The names and particulars ofthe directors ofthe Company during or since the end ofthe financial year are:

Name

Mr Stephen Goddard
Non-Executive Director
MSc. BSc (Hons)

Ms Beth Laughton
Non-Executive Director
B.Ec, FAICD, FCA

Mr Mark Powell
Non-Executive Director
BSc (Hons), MSc, MBA
(Distinction), BApp.
Theol, MA (Hons)

Particulars

Stephen was appointed to the Board in August2016 and became Chairman on 1 July
2020. Stephenis also Chair ofthe Company’s Remuneration and Nominations
Committee and was a member of the Auditand Risk Management Committee until 30
June 2020. Stephen has more than 30 years’ retail experience having held senior
executive positions with some of Australia’s best-known retailers. Theseinclude Finance
Directorand Operations Director for David Jones, founding Managing Director of
Officeworks, and various senior managementroles with Myer. Stephen is currently a
non-executive director and Chair ofthe Auditand Risk Management Committees of
Accent Group Limited and Nick Scali Limited and was previously anon-executive
director and Chair ofthe Audit and Risk Management Committee of GWA Group Limited.

Beth was appointed to the Board in May 2011, became Chair of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee in June 2012, and is also a member ofthe Company’s
Remuneration and Nominations Committee. After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant,
Beth spentover 25 yearsin corporate finance, providing mergers and acquisition advice
and arranging equity funding for companies inarange ofindustries including specialty
retail. For 12 years her primary focus was on information technology,
telecommunications and entertainment. Sheis a non-executive director of Region Group
(formerly Shopping Centres Australasia Property Group) and Chair ofits Audit, Risk
Management and Compliance Committee. In November 2023, Beth will end an eight-
year term as a member of the board of GPT Funds Management Limited where sheis
also Chair ofits Audit, Compliance & Risk Management Committee. Beth was previously
a member ofthe Defence SA Advisory Board, anon-executive director of Port Adelaide
Maritime Corporation, anon-executive directorand Chair ofthe Audit Committee ofboth
Sydney Ferries and CRC Care Pty Ltd, and a non-executive director of the ASX listed
Australand Property Group companies.

Mark was appointed to the Board in March 2017 and is a member ofthe Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. Following
initial training and experience in underground coalmining, Mark has gained over 30
years’ executive experiencein retail, logistics and wholesale distributionin the UK,
Spain, North America, Australia and New Zealand. This includes being UK Logistics
Operations Director for Tesco Plc, running Wal-Mart Canada’s logistics operationsand
as CEO ofthe Warehouse Stationery retail chain in NZ. Mark also spentfive years as
Group CEO for The Warehouse Group, aNZX listed retail group which includes Noel
Leeming, NZ'’s largesttechnology and appliances retailer. He was also an advisor to the
board of The Good Guys for 18 months priorto its acquisition by JB Hi-Fi. Mark is
currently a non-executive directorof Bapcor Limited and Chair ofits Nominations,
Remuneration and ESG Committee, a non-executive directorof My Food Bag Group
Limited, a non-executive director of Stih| Pty Ltd, and a non-executive director and
member of the Strategy and Audit, Compliance & Risk Committees of 7-Eleven Australia.
Mark was previously a non-executive director of Kiwi Property Group and Chair of its
ESG Committee.

11



Mr Geoff Roberts
Non-Executive Director
Exec. MBA, B.Comm,
FCA, FAICD

Mr Richard Uechtritz
Non-Executive Director

Ms Melanie Wilson
Non-Executive Director
MBA, B.Comm (Hons),
GAICD

Mr Terry Smart
Group Chief Executive
Officer and Executive
Director

Mr Nick Wells

Group ChiefFinancial
Officer

and Executive Director
B.Comm, CA

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Directors’ Report

Geoff was appointedto the Board in January 2021. Geoff is a non-executive director and
honorary treasurer for both the Melbourne Cricket Club and Walter and Eliza Hall
Institute of Medical Research, and is a non-executive director of Djerriwarrh Investments
Limited. His executive career included 13 years as Group ChiefFinancial Officer of Seek
Limited and AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Limited, and 15 years as a partner with Deloitte,
including as Managing partner Victoria.

Richard has over 30 years’ experiencein retailing. He was co-founder of Australia’s two
leading photo chains, Rabbit Photo and Smiths Kodak Express, and was a director of
Kodak (Australasia) Pty Ltd. Richard led the managementbuy-in of JB Hi-Fiin July 2000
and was CEO and Managing Directoruntil his resignationfromthese positions in May
2010. Richard re-joined the Board in April 2011 as a non-executive director. Heis also a
non-executive director of Seven Group Holdings Limited.

Melanie was appointed to the Board in June 2020 and is a member of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. Melanie gained extensive experience in senior management
roles across global retail brands, including Woolworths (Head of Online, Big W and
Manager, Strategy Group), Limited Brands (Victoria’s Secretand Bath & Bodyworks,
New York), and Dival/Lovisa. Her retail experience includes online/e-commerce, store
operations, merchandise systems, marketing, brand developmentand logistics/fulfiiment.
Melanie has also held roles with Bain & Company (Boston) and Goldman Sachs (Hong
Kong/Sydney) and completed an MBA at Harvard Business School. Melanieis currently
a non-executive director and Chair of Baby Bunting Group Ltd and a member of its
Remuneration & Nominations and Audit & Risk Committees. She is also a non-executive
director of Property Guru Group (Singapore). Melanie was previously anon-executive
director of Shaver Shop Group Limited and EML Payments Ltd, and a non-executive
director and Chair ofthe Audit & Risk Committee ofiSelect Limited.

Terry was appointed Group CEO and joined the Board in August2021. He was
previously CEO of JB Hi-Fi from May 2010 to June 2014, followingten years as Chief
Operating Officer, and oversaw significantexpansion and growth during this time. Terry
returned to the JB Hi-Fi Group in April 2017 as Managing Director of The Good Guys
and led the repositioning and significantimprovementin performance of The Good Guys
business.

Nick was appointed Chief Financial Officer ofthe Group in 2014 and joined the Board in
August 2021. Nick oversees the finance, property, risk, sustainability and M&A functions
and, during his time as CFO, has implemented significant strategic initiatives, including
leading the acquisition of The Good Guys in 2016. Prior to joining JB Hi-Fiin 2009, Nick
was a Manager at Deloitte where he provided auditand assurance services to abroad
range ofcompanies, including a number of Australian retail businesses.

Each ofthe aforementioned directors held office for the whole financial year and sincethe end ofthe financial year.

On 14 August 2023, the Company announced the appointment of Christy Boyce as a non-executive director with
effect from 16 September 2023.

Company Secretary

Mr Doug Smith
BA (Hons). Admitted to

Doug was appointed Company Secretary in June 2012. Doug joined JBHi-Fi as
General Counsel in September 2010 and has over 25 years’ legal and company

legal practicein Victoria& secretarial experiencein-house and in private practice.

in England and Wales
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Directorships of other listed companies

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Directors’ Report

Directorships of other listed companies held by directors in the 3 years immediately before the end of the financial
year, and since the end of thefinancial year, are as follows:

Name

Company

Period of Directorship

Stephen Goddard

Beth Laughton

Mark Powell

Geoff Roberts
Richard Uechtritz

Melanie Wilson

Principal activity

GWA Group Limited
Accent Group Limited
Nick Scali Limited

Region Group

Kiwi Property Group Limited (NZX)
Bapcor Limited
My Food Bag Group Limited (NZX)

Djerriwarrh Investments Limited
Seven Group Holdings Limited

Baby Bunting Group Limited
iSelect Limited

Shaver Shop Group Limited
EML Payments Limited

October 2016 — June 2023
Since November 2017
Since March 2018

Since December 2018
October 2017 — May 2023

Since September 2020
Since November 2022

Since July 2022
Since June 2010

Since February 2016

March 2016 — October 2021
June 2016 — May 2020
February 2018 — February 2023

The Group’s principal activity in the course of the financial year was the retailing of home consumer products. The
Group offers awide range of leading brands with particular focus on consumer electronics, software (including
music, games and movies), whitegoods and appliances. There have been no significantchangesin the nature ofthe
principal activityofthe Group during the financial year.

Operating and Financial Review

The Operating and Financial Review, which forms partofthis Directors’ Report, is presented separately on pages

17 to 31.

Changes in state of affairs

During the financial year there was no significant change in the state of affairs ofthe Group.

Subsequent events

There have been no matters or circumstances occurring subsequentto the end ofthe financial year thathave
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations ofthe Group, the results ofthose operations, or the
state of affairs ofthe Group in future financial years.

Future developments

Information regarding likely developmentsin the operations ofthe Group in future financial years is setoutin the

Operating and Financial Review and elsewhere in the Annual Report.

Environmental regulations

The Group’s operations are not subjectto any particular and significantenvironmental regulation. The Group’s
Sustainability Reportprovides disclosure around the material sustainability-related issues for the Group’s
businesses. The Group has notincurred any significantliabilities under any environmental legislation during the

financial year.

Dividends and Off-Market Share Buy-Back

In respectofthe financial year ended 30 June 2022, as detailed in the Directors’Reportfor that financial year, an
interimdividend of 163.0 cents per share and a final dividend of 153.0 cents per share, both franked to 100% at the
30% corporateincome tax rate, were paid to the holders of fully paid ordinaryshares on 11 March 2022 and 9

September 2022 respectively.
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In respectofthe financial year ended 30 June 2023, an interimdividend of 197.0 cents per share was paid to the
holders of fully paid ordinary shares on 10 March 2023 and thedirectors have declared the paymentofa final
dividendof115.0 cents per share to be paid to the holders of fully paid ordinary shares on 8 September 2023. Both
dividends are franked to 100% at the 30% corporateincome tax rate. Thetotal dividend for the financial year of
312.0 cents per sharerepresents a payoutratio of approximately 65% of net profit after tax of $524.6 million.

In FY2022, the Company successfully completed a $250.0 million off-market share buy-back which resulted in
the purchase of 5.5 million ofthe Company’s shares, being 4.8% ofthe shares onissue. The buy-back was
comprised ofa $232.4 million (92.9%) fully franked dividend and a $17.6 million (7.1%) capital component.

Indemnification of officers and auditors

The Company indemnifies current and former directors and officers for any loss arising fromany claim by reason
of any wrongful act committed by them in their capacity as a director or officer (subject to certain exclusions as
required by law). During the financial year, the Company has paid premiums in respect of contracts insuring the
directors and officers against any liability of this nature. In accordance with normal commercial practices, under
the terms of the insurance contracts the nature of the liabilities insured against, and the amount of the premiums
paid, are confidential. The Company has nototherwise, during or since the end ofthefinancial year, exceptto the
extent permitted by law, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor ofthe Company or ofany related
body corporate againstaliability incurred as such by an officer or auditor.
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The following table sets outthe number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of Committees of directors) held
during the 2023 financial year and the number of meetings attended by the members ofthe Board or the relevant
Committee. During thefinancial year, 15 Board meetings, 5 Remuneration and Nominations Committee meetings
and 6 Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings were held.

Board of Directors

Remuneration and
Nominations Committee

Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Directors Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended
S. Goddard 15 15 5 5 - -
B. Laughton 15 15 5 5 6 6
M. Powell 15 15 5 5 6 6
G. Roberts 15 15 - - 6 6
R. Uechtritz 15 14 - - - -
M. Wilson 15 15 - - 6 5
T. Smart 15 15 - - - -
N. Wells 15 15 - - - -

Directors’ shareholdings

Thefollowingtable sets outeach director's relevantinterestin shares, debentures, and rights oroptions insharesor

debentures ofthe Company, orarelated body corporate, as atthe date ofthis Report.

Fully paid ordinary shares

Executive share options

Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total
Directors number number number number
S. Goddard 4,500 - 4,500 - - -
B. Laughton 5,804 - 5,804 - - -
M. Powell 4,000 - 4,000 - - -
G. Roberts - 4,000 4,000 - - -
R. Uechtritz 4,816 - 4,816 - - -
M. Wilson - 3,500 3,500 - - -
T. Smart - 128,648 128,648 - - -
N. Wells - 44,493 44,493 - - -

Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Report, which forms partofthis Directors’ Report, is presented separately on pages 32 to 49.

Proceedings on behalf of the Company

The directors are notaware ofany persons applying forleave under s.237 of the Corporations Act 2001 to bring, or
intervenein, proceedings onbehalfofthe Company.

Non-audit services

Given the size and complexity ofthe Group, itcan be in the interests ofthe Group to engage the services ofits
auditorto assistin a range of related projects. The directors are aware ofthe issues relating to auditor

independence and havein place policies and procedures to address actual, potential and perceived conflicts in
relation to the provision ofnon-audit related services by the Company’s auditor.

Details ofthe non-audit services undertaken by, and amounts paid to, the auditor ofthe Group are detailed in Note

28 to the financial statements.
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The directors are satisfied thatthe provision of non-auditservices during the year by the auditoris compatible with,
and do notcompromise, the auditorindependence requirements ofthe Corporations Act 2001 for the following
reasons:

. all non-auditservices have been reviewed and approved to ensure thatthey do notimpacttheintegrity and
objectivity ofthe auditor; and

. noneofthe services underminethe general principles relating to auditorindependence as setout in the Code
of Conduct APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Australian Professional &
Ethical Standards Board, including reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in amanagementor
decision-making capacity for the Company, acting as advocate for the Company orjointly sharingeconomic
risks and rewards.

Auditor’s independence declaration

The auditor'sindependence declarationis included on page 50 ofthe Annual Report.

Rounding off of amounts

The Companyis acompanyofakindreferred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports)
Instrument2016/191 dated 24 March 2016, and in accordance with that Corporations Instrument, amountsin the
Directors’ Reportand financial report are rounded offto the nearesthundred thousand dollars, unless otherwise
indicated.

Signed in accordance with aresolution ofthe directors made pursuantto s.298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf ofthe directors

Stephen Goddard Terry Smart

Chairman Group Chief Executive Officer
14 August 2023
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group includes two iconicretail brands:

e JB Hi-Fi— a leading retailer oftechnology and consumer electronics with a strong position with a young
tech-savvy demographic;and

e The Good Guys— a leading retailer ofhome appliances and consumer electronics with a strong position
with home-making families.

Both businesses aim to sell the best brands, providing abig range, at low prices with exceptional customer
service provided by passionate, knowledgeable team members.

The Group holds significant market-share in many of its productcategories and sells the following products:

. consumer electronics and technology products including televisions, audio equipment, computers, fitness,
health and wellbeing products, smart home products and cameras;

. telecommunications products and services;

. home appliances including whitegoods, cooking products, heating & cooling products, small appliances and
kitchen accessories; and

. software (music, movies and games) and associated collectibles and merchandise.

The Group also provides information technology and consulting services.

The Group has multichannel sales capability with sales primarily fromits branded retail store networks (202 JB Hi-
Fi/JB Hi-Fi Home stores in Australia, 14 JB Hi-Fi stores in New Zealand and 106 The Good Guys stores in Australia
as at 30 June 2023), online operations (JB Hi-Fi and The Good Guys websites) and overthe phone. Sales are also
generated fromthe Group’s commercial and education businesses.

The Group Model is underpinned by 4 unique competitive advantages

Scale:

e #1 playerin Australian Consumer Electronics and Home Appliance market

e localand global relevanceto suppliers

e strong and engagedsupplier relationships both locallyand globally

e large,engaged and diversified customer base across the two brands provides suppliers with the ability to
execute promotionsand new productlaunches atscale

e young customerbase drives ongoingbrand importance to suppliersto maximise sales ofnew technology and
innovation

o high volume website traffic provides significant marketing opportunities and reach

e Group function enables business to drive efficiencies across large costbase

Low Cost Operating Model:
e constantfocus on productivity and minimising unnecessary expenditure
e highly productive floor space with high sales per square metre
o efficiency ofmodel allows the Group to:
- respond to marketprice activity and maintain focus on marketshare; and
- compete effectively with traditional competitors and new market entrants

Multichannel Capability:

e focuson providing the customer with an integrated and frictionless shopping experience regardlessof their
chosen sales channel

e customerchoiceon howto shopwith us:
- in-store - high quality store locations that provide convenience and easy access
- online-highbrand awareness and optimised digital experience drives high traffic through websites
- overthe phone-convenientand personalised sales experience giving customers the ability to negotiate

adeal

o fastfulfilment, viain-store shopping, click-and-collect, or delivery from the store network or big and bulky
Home Delivery Centres

e aftersales supportviaany channel provides confidence when buying

o national Commercial business supporting corporate, governmentand education customers
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People & Culture:

knowledgeable and passionate teams who put customers firstand provide exceptional customer service
strong, overarching culture thatalso reflects the individual brand personalities

dynamic and flexible environmentallowsthe business to pivot quickly and adaptto any changing market
conditions

highly engaged teams who have a connection with the business and its purpose

diverse and inclusive workforce

unrelenting focus on health and safety
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GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FY2023 — HIGHLIGHTS

FY2023 FY2022 Growth
Total Sales ($m) 9,626.4 9,232.0 394.4 +4.3%
Earnings before interestand tax ($m) 769.0 794.6 (25.6) (3.2%)
Net profit after tax ($m) 524.6 544.9 (20.4) (3.7%)
Earnings pershare (basic ¢) 479.9 479.5 | +0.4 cps +0.1%
Dividend per share (¢) 312.0 316.0 (4 cps) (1.3%)

Total sales were up 4.3% to $9.63 billion (up 35.7% vs pre Covid FY2019). Earnings before interestand tax (EBIT)
was down 3.2% to $769.0 million (up 106.3% vs pre Covid FY2019). Net profit after tax (NPAT) was down 3.7% to
$524.6 million (up 110.0% vs pre Covid FY2019). Earnings per sharewas up 0.1% to 479.9 cps (up 120.7% vs pre
Covid FY2019). The total dividend for FY2023 was 312.0 cps,down 4.0 cps or 1.3% (up 119.7% vs pre Covid
FY2019).

DIVISIONAL PERFORMANCE
JB Hi-Fi Australia

FY2023 FY2022 Growth
Sales ($m) 6,546.1 6,196.5 +5.6%
Gross Profit ($m) 1,481.4 1,387.7 +6.7%
Gross Margin (%) 22.63% 22.40% +23 bps
Costof Doing Business (%) 12.07% 11.40% +68 bps
EBITDA ($m) 690.9 681.4 +1.4%
EBITDA Margin (%) 10.55% 11.00% (44 bps)
EBIT ($m) 551.9 544.9 +1.3%
EBIT Margin (%) 8.43% 8.79% (36 bps)

Total sales were up 5.6% to $6.55 billion with comparable sales growth up 4.8%. When compared to pre Covid
FY2019, total sales were up 38.5%.

Hardware and services sales (all sales excluding the Music, Movies and Games Software categories) were up 5.8%
forthe financial year, with comparable sales up 4.9%, driven by the Communications, Audio, Accessories, Games
Hardware and Services categories. Software sales were up 2.4%, and on a comparable basis were up 1.9%, as a
result of growth in the Music and Games Software categories partially offsetby a decline in the Movies category. By
value, software sales represented 4.5% of total sales (FY2022: 4.7%).

Online sales declined 20.9% to $940 million or 14.4% oftotal sales. When compared to pre Covid FY2019, online
sales were up 264.3%.

Gross profitincreased by 6.7% to $1.48 billion, with gross marginincreasing by 23 bps to 22.6%, driven by positive
sales mix. Costof Doing Business (“CODB”) was up 68 bpsto 12.1% for the year but remained below pre Covid
FY2019 CODB, driven by continued disciplined cost control. Depreciation increased by 1.8% with an increasein
depreciation on right-of-use assets partially offsetby a declinein depreciation onfixed assets. EBIT was up 1.3% to
$551.9 million, with EBIT margin down 36 bp to 8.4%, but remained strong when compared to pre Covid FY2019
(FY2019 pre-AASB 16 EBIT of $301.7 million and EBIT margin 0f6.4%).

Unless otherwise stated, all results disclosed in this Operating & Financial Review are Statutory and, as a result, FY2019
comparatives are prior to the adoption of AASB 16 Leases.
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JB Hi-Fi New Zealand®)

FY2023 FY2022 Growth
Sales (NZ$m) 2921 262.4 +11.3%
Gross Profit (NZ$m) 46.7 457 +2.4%
Gross Margin (%) 16.00% 17.40% (140 bps)
Costof Doing Business (%) 14.18% 12.75% +142 bps
EBITDA (NZ$m) 5.3 12.2 (56.3%)
EBITDA Margin (%) 1.82% 4.64% (282 bps)
EBIT (NZ$m) 4.4 8.8 (49.9%)
EBIT Margin (%) 1.52% 3.37% (185 bps)
Underlying EBIT (NZ$m)( (2.2) 47 (148.1%)
Underlying EBIT Margin (%) (0.77%) 1.77% (254 bps)

(i) Amounts disclosed for JB Hi-Fi New Zealand are in local currency to remove the impacts of foreign currency translation on trading
performance. The Australian dollar performance is presented in Note 2 of the financial statements.

(i) Underlying EBIT represents EBIT adjusted for the add back of non-cash impairment losses associated with right-of-use assets and fixed
assets of NZ$0.0 million (FY2022: NZ$3.3 million), minus depreciation of NZ$6.7 million (FY2022: NZ$7.5 million) that would have been
recognised if right-of-use assets and fixed assets had not been impaired.

Total sales were up 11.3% to NZ$292.1 million, with comparable sales also up 11.3%. When compared to pre
Covid FY2019, total sales were up 23.6%. Hardware and Services sales (all sales excluding the Music, Movies and
Games Software categories) were up 11.0%, with comparable sales also up 11.0%. The key growth categoriesin
FY2023 were Communications, Audio, Games Hardware, Fitness and Accessories. Software sales were up 14.5%
with comparable sales also up 14.5%. Software sales were 7.6% of total sales (FY2022: 7.4%). Online sales
declined 25.7% to NZ$32.1 million or 11.0% of total sales. When compared to pre Covid FY2019, online sales were
up 141.9%.

Gross profitwas up 2.4% to NZ$46.7 million with gross margin down 140 bps on FY2022 to 16.0% driven by price
competitiveness in key categories and negative sales mix. CODB was up 142 bps on FY2022 to 14.2% but
remained below pre Covid FY2019 CODB, driven by continued disciplined costcontrol. EBITDA was NZ$5.3 million,
down 56.3% and EBIT was also down 49.9% to NZ$4.4 million, with EBIT margin down 185bps to 1.5%.
Underlying EBIT, excluding the impact ofimpairments in the currentand prior year, was negative NZ$2.2 million,
down NZ$6.9 million on FY2022 and down on pre Covid FY2019 EBIT ofnegative NZ$1.9 million (pre-AASB 16).
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The Good Guys

FY2023 FY2022 Growth
Sales ($m) 2,813.0 2,789.4 +0.8%
Gross Profit ($m) 658.4 649.9 +1.3%
Gross Margin (%) 23.40% 23.30% +11 bps
Costof Doing Business (%) 12.83% 11.79% +104 bps
EBITDA ($m) 297.4 321.1 (7.4%)
EBITDA Margin (%) 10.57% 11.51% (94 bps)
EBIT ($m) 213.0 2414 (11.8%)
EBIT Margin (%) 7.57% 8.65% (108 bps)

Total sales grew by 0.8% to $2.81 billion with comparable sales growth of 0.8%. When compared to pre Covid
FY2019, total sales were up 31.0%. The key growth categories for FY2023 were Refrigeration, Laundry,
Floorcare, Personal Care and Audio.

Online sales for FY2023 were down 14.1% to $341.1 million or 12.1% oftotal sales. When compared to pre Covid
FY2019, online sales were up 160.5%.

Gross profitfor FY2023 was up 1.3% to $658.4 million, with gross marginup 11 bps to 23.4%, driven by positive
sales mix. CODB for FY2023 was up 104 bpsto 12.8% but remained below pre Covid FY2019 CODB, driven by
disciplined costcontrol. Depreciation grew by 5.0% with an increase in both depreciation onright-of-use assets and
fixed assets.

EBIT was down by 11.8% to $213.0 million with EBIT margin down 108 bps to 7.6% but remained strong when
compared to pre Covid FY2019 EBIT (FY2019 pre-AASB 16 EBIT of $72.9 million and EBIT margin of 3.4%).
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s total net assets at the end of the financial year were $1,419.6 million, which was $139.3 million
higherthan at the end of FY2022.

The Group has a total of $429.2 million external finance facilities which are unchanged fromthe prior year and
are comprised as follows, with $379.2 million undrawn as at 30 June 2023:

e $200.0 million trade finance facility renewable annually;

e $20.0 million and NZ$10.0 million overdraft facilities renewable annually (total AU$29.2 million); and

e $200.0 million term debt facility with an expiry date of February 2025.

The financial covenantsincluded in the Group’s financing facilities are leverage and fixed charges cover ratios.
The Group has complied with each of its financial covenants throughoutthe period.

At the end of the financial year the Group had total interest bearing liabilities of $49.8 million and cash on hand of
$177.3 million, resulting in net cash of$127.5 million, compared to net cash of $66.2 million in the prior year.

The total dividend forthe 2023 financial year of 312.0 cents per share represents a payout ratio of approximately
65% of net profitafter tax. The final dividend forthe 2023 financial year of 115.0 cents per share fully franked will
be paid on 8 September 2023 with a record date of 25 August 2023.

The Board will continue to regularly review the Group’s capital structure with a focus on maximising returns to
shareholders and maintaining balance sheet strength and flexibility.

INVESTMENTS FOR FUTURE PERFORMANCE

Investments of $72.0 million were made during the financial year in capital expenditure projects, an increase of
$14.4 million from $57.6 million during the previous financial year. Capital expenditure increased from FY2022 as
the Group continued to invest in the store portfolio, online and strategic initiatives. The Group’s investing activities
are anticipated to contribute towards future earnings growth.

WORKING CAPITAL

Totalinventory on hand decreased fromthe previous financial year by $94.4 million or 8.3% to $1,040.9 million.
Inventory turnover was down 5bps to 6.8 times from 6.9 times in FY2022, but up 58 bps on pre Covid FY2019
(FY2019: 6.3 times). Compared to pre Covid FY2019, inventory was up 17.4% compared to sales growth of 35.7%
over the same period.

Payables, were down 8.5% or $61.1 million in FY2023 compared to FY2022 in line with the movements in inventory.

Financial and operating leverage remains low as evidenced by solid fixed charges cover'of4.5times (FY2022: 4.8
times) and interestcover®of170.9 times (FY2022: 602.1 times). The Company’s gearing ratio? was low at 0.1
(FY2022: 0.1) as there were only $50.0 million of borrowings at 30 June 2023 (FY2022: $60.0 million).

Operating cash flows and operating cash conversion continue to be strong. The Group had netcash of $127.5
million at 30 June 2023.

1 Calculated prior to the impact of AASB 16
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STORES

The Group’s sales are primarily from its branded retail store networks, located both in stand-alone destination
sites and shoppingcentrelocations.

The storelocations as at 30 June 2023 are set outbelow.

Total JB Hi-Fi Stores —216
Total The Good Guys Stores — 106

JB Hi-Fi Australia

JB Hi-Fi New Zealand @

The Good Guys

000

In Australia, five new JB Hi-Fi stores were opened and two JB Hi-Fi stores were closed in FY2023. No The Good
Guys or JB Hi-Fi New Zealand stores were opened or closed in FY2023.
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BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

The following factors are considered importantin understanding the strategy of the Group and the main
opportunities and threats that may have a significanteffect on its results and its prospects for future years. These
factors are listed regardless of whether they were significantin FY2023.

Business risks

There are a number offactors, both specific to the Group and ofa general nature, which may threaten both the
future operating and financial performance ofthe Group, and the outcome of an investmentin the Group. There can
be no guarantee that the Group will achieve its stated objectives or that forward looking statements will be realised.
The operating and financial performance ofthe Group is influenced by a variety of general economic and business
conditions, including levels of consumer spending, inflation, interestand exchange rates, access to debt and capital
markets and governmentfiscal, monetary and regulatory policies. Aprolonged deterioration in general economic
conditions, includingan increasein interestrates ora decrease in consumer and business demand, may have an
adverseimpacton the Group’s business or financial condition.

The specific material business risks faced by the Group, and how the Group manages these risks, are set out

below.

¢  Competition —the markets in which the Group operates remain highly competitive and any increased
competition fromnew and existingcompetitorsmay lead to pricedeflation and adeclinein sales and
profitability. As the #1 playerin a fragmented Australian market, the Group’s scale allows itto maintain focus on
market share and absorb margin pressure during periods of heightened market price activity and consolidation.
The Group also believes thatits competitive advantages and the plans for growth set out below will allow it to
maintain its market leading position.

e Alossorerosionofreputation —both the JB Hi-Fi business and The Good Guys business enjoyahigh level of
loyalty and trustwith customers. Any declinein this highlevel ofloyalty and trust could compromise the market
leading positions ofthe JB Hi-Fi business and The Good Guys business and adversely affectthe Group’s
operating and financial performance. This could occur as aresult ofa widerange offactors or events,
including:

— alossorerosion ofthereputation ofthe JB Hi-Fiand The Good Guys businesses for price leadership. The
Group constantly reviews and updates its pricing strategy and takes a pro-active approach to responding
to the competitive environmentincluding careful monitoring ofits competitors’ pricing and strategic and
tactical marketing campaigns to maintain its price position;

— alossorerosion ofthereputation ofthe JB Hi-Fiand The Good Guys businesses for highlevels of
customer service, and/or the in-store experience provided by the businesses does not meet customer
expectations. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through the use of customer service and engagement
analytics, senior management monitoring of customer complaints, targeted capex investment, optimising
floor layouts and category space allocation, the trialling of new store formats, and an ongoing program of
work to improvein-store experience and evolve its service model;

— theonlineexperience provided by the Group’s businesses does not meet customer expectations. The
Group demonstrated its ability to capture online sales during the Covid-19 pandemicand continues to
investin its digital and online capability;

- amajor information security breach ofthe Group’s IT systems. Information security breaches remain a key
area offocus for organisations globally to mitigate the risk offinancial and/or reputational damage. The
Group seeks to mitigate this risk throughinvestmentin IT security measures, includingincidentresponse
planning and testing. Noting the constantevolution ofthe nature and sophistication of external threats,
management conductregular reviews of, and continuous improvementover, the Group’s network security
and information security controls (including a continuous program of system updates, patching and
vulnerability assessments to ensure core systems are keptsecure on an on-going basis), and monitorsthe
external environmentfor new and emerging risks;

- amajor workplace health and safety incidentor customerinjury. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk
through having appropriate occupational health and safety procedures and stafftrainingin place for all of
its sites. Particular areas offocus in recentyears include mental health and wellbeing ofthe Group’s team
members, how to deal with disgruntled or aggressive customers, safety within the Group’s home delivery
centres, Covid-safe workingenvironments and hazard, incidentand injury management. Further detail is
setoutin the Group’s Sustainability Report;
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— asignificantbreach ofregulatory orlegislative requirements. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through
appropriate stafftraining on key regulatory and legislative requirements relevantto its business, as well as
making legal and regulatory compliance akey focus of the managementteam; or

— the Group failing to meetits sustainability or corporate social responsibility objectives, or notoperatingin
accordance with community and stakeholder expectationsin these areas and the potential foradverse
media coverage should this occur. The Group seeks to mitigate this viaits sustainability and corporate
social responsibility initiatives under its Group Sustainability Framework, details of which can be found in
the Group’s annual Sustainability Reports. Managementmonitorsprogress againstthe Group’s
Sustainability Plan and engages with suppliers, investors and across industry forums to ensure that
changes in stakeholder expectations are understood. In addition, the Group actively monitorsboth social
and traditional mediaon an ongoing basis and, where appropriate, responds to issues raised, as well as
taking any steps necessary to promptly address valid concerns or underlyingissues.

Consumer discretionary spending and changes in consumer demands —the Group is exposed to both the

upside and downside of consumer spending cycles and changes inconsumer demand. A reduction in

consumer spendingand demand (for example, dueto an increasein inflation) may lead to a declinein the

Group’s sales and profitability. The Group maintains its relevance usingits strong market position supported by

its low price proposition. Many ofthe products sold by the Group are now considered less “discretionary” than

in the past, with products such as mobile phones and computers now being seen as “essential” by many
consumers. The Group’s stores, which are both in convenientand high traffic locations, seek to maximise both
destination andimpulse sales, reflected in the Group’s high sales per square metre offloor space. The Group
also closely monitors changes in the economic environment, consumer demand and new products, and is able
to respond quickly to such changes.

Online competitiontaking sales fromthe Group’s stores — the Group seeks to provide customers with a quality

online offer, while leveraging the benefits ofits physical stores. The Group continues to investand innovate

both in-storeand onlinein order to give customers the choice as to how to transact with the JB Hi-Fiand The

Good Guys businesses, and is focusing on continuing to integrate the in-store and online experience. The

Group’s market leadership and scale gives itglobal relevance with suppliers and drives significantbuying

power which enables the Group to compete successfully with online players, as does its low costofdoing

business. The Group also believes that the existence of its store networks will continue to provide confidence in
after-sales service and supportto its online customers, whilstalso enabling fastonline fulfilmentviadelivery
from stores and click-and-collect.

Digitisationof physical software leadingto afall in traditional software sales beyond expectations —the JB Hi-Fi

business will maintain asoftware presencein store while the category is still providing solid returns, whilst

adjusting inventory, range and in-store space allocated to the category as appropriate.

Ineffective inventory management—a failure to maintain sufficientinventory (or holding excessive inventory)

may adversely affect the Group’s operating and financial performance. The Group mitigates this risk through

regular monitoring ofinventory quality and stock levels.

Shortage ofinventory dueto supply chaindisruption—a shortage ofinventory due to global or local supply

chain disruption may adversely affectthe Group’s operating and financial performance. The Group’s scale and

strong relationships with alarge number of differentsuppliers means thatit is in a strong position to obtain
inventory even when supply chains are disrupted.

Failure to maintain key supplier relationships —the Group has strong partnershipswith all major suppliers, with

its dual brand retail approach providingranging and merchandising optionality and facilitating the execution of

strategic initiatives atscale. The Group’s store locations and high traffic websites provide suppliers with high
visibility for their products. The Group has significant supplier management processes to mitigate the risk of
failing to maintain key supplier relationships and, whilstatany one time certain products and suppliers are more
importantthan others, thelarge and diverse range of products stocked by the businesses means that reliance
on any onesupplieror productis less than for some smaller competitors. In addition, the JBHi-Fiand The

Good Guys businesses have provenrecords ofexpansioninto new product categories and introducing new

brands, rather than solely remaining reliant on those products and brands which were successful in previous

years.

Supply chain capability does notsupportthe Group’s growth objectives —the Group continues to develop and

improveits supply chainthroughinitiatives such as the rationalisation ofthe warehouse network into Group-

operated Home Delivery Centres, the improvementofinventory planningand ordering processes, and the
expansionofdelivery options.
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The “JB Hi-FiBusiness”, “JB Hi-Fi Education”, and “The Good Guys Commercial” businesses do notdeliver the
expected growth outcomes for the Group —the Group continues to investin these businesses to supporttheir
continued growth and expand their productand service offerings.

Growth fromexpansion ofthe Group’s productand services offeringsdoes notdeliver the expected growth
outcomes forthe Group — the Group continues to investand innovate in these areas to support continued
growth.

Failure to achieve the expected improved results forthe JBHi-Fi New Zealand business may have an adverse
impacton the Group’s operatingand financial performance —the Group is encouraged by theimproved sales
performance ofthe JB Hi-Fi New Zealand business and is investingin the business for future growth.
Increasing costofdoing business—certain costs of doingbusiness are outside ofthe Group’s control. For
example, the Group’s costofdoingbusiness is impacted by the annual Fair Work Award wage reviews and
rising energy costs. However, theincreasing scale ofthe Group’s operations continues to deliver cost benefits
and the Group remains focused on controlling costs.

Leasing arrangements —the ability to identify suitable sites and negotiate suitable leasing terms for new and
existing stores and warehouses is key to the Group’s ongoing growth and profitability. The Group believes that
it will continue to be able to do this as it has done successfullyto date, and management continually assess the
Group’s strategy on locations and formats to optimise the store and warehouse network in lightofchanges in
the market.

Loss of, orinability to attractand retain, key staff — the Group’s ability to attract and retain talented staff is
critical to its operating and financial performance. In recognition of this, succession planningand
executive/senior managementteam composition is akey focus for the Board and Group executiveteam. The
Group continues to focus on providing a safe, inclusive and welcoming environmentfor all ofits employees and
on developingand improvingits programs and strategies relating to diversity &inclusion, the prevention of
harassment, discrimination or bullying, and developmentofits team members. Further detail is set out in the
Group’s Sustainability Report.

IT systems —the Group’sincreasing reliance on IT systems means that outages, disruptions and security
breaches could have a detrimental impacton its operating and financial performance, and any failure to
maintain and upgradeits IT systems over time has the potential to inhibitthe achievementofthe Group’s
business initiatives. To mitigate theserisks, the Group has disaster recovery processes (including off-site IT
back-up infrastructure) and invests in IT security measures. The Group also continues to investand develop its
IT resources and capabilities to supportthe Group’s strategic objectives.

Sustained disruption to operations resulting from external factors —external factors outside ofthe Group’s
control, such as pandemic, disruption to supply chains, systemic utility failures or extreme weather events could
materially impact the Group’s businesses. The Group mitigates these risks by contingency planning as far as
practicable, and its flexible model allows managementto quickly take appropriate action to reactto any such
risks as they arise.

Changes in regulatory environment—changes in theregulatory environmentin which the Group operates may
increase compliance costs, and even (in extreme cases) affect the ability ofthe Group to sell certain types of
products and services or conduct certain activities. Whilst such changes are outside the controlofthe Group,
the Group monitors proposed changes in theregulatory environment so thatit can assess the impactof such
changes and develop appropriate response strategies where possible.

Finance — a breach of the Group’s debt covenants orinability to access financing facilities could adversely
affect the Group’s operating and financial performance. The Group has significantheadroomin both its debt
facilities and covenants. Additionally, cash flow forecasts and debt capacity are closely monitored by
management. Details of the Group’s financing facilities are setout on page 22.

Fraud and corruption —the Group has no history of material fraud or corruption and seeks to minimise therisk
of loss arisingfrom fraud and corruption through appropriate policies, procedures and controls. Risk
identification and managementis managed on aday-to-day basis by a dedicated risk managementand
business assurance team which evaluates, and looks to continually improve, the effectiveness ofthe Group’s
governance, risk managementand internal controlprocesses.

Litigation/breach oflegal or regulatoryrequirements —legal proceedings and claims may arise fromtime to time
inthe ordinary course ofthe Group’s businesses and may resultin high legal costs, adverse monetary
judgements and/or damage to the Group’s businesses which could have an adverseimpacton the Group’s
financial position and financial performance. Additionally, asignificantbreach of regulatory requirements or
laws could adversely impactthe Group’s ability to carry on its business. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk
through appropriate stafftraining on key regulatory and legislative requirements relevantto its business, as well
as making legal and regulatory compliance akey focus of the managementteam.
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Business Strategies

The Group believes thatthe following strategies/factors will continue to drive growth in sales and earnings:
e« catering for our customers’differentshopping requirements by:

continuing to focus on in-store experience and engagement;

constantcategory and storelayoutevolution;

continued datadriven evaluation of new store opportunities with 5new JB Hi-Fi stores opened in FY2023
(including two smaller “curated range” stores) with additional new store opportunities in Australiaand New
Zealand in FY2024;

focus on improving customer conversionand online spend;

expand our reach and convenience for our customers by implementing personalised promotional
campaigns using our substantial customer membership data, live chaton the JB Hi-Fi Australia website,
The Good Guys Online “Price Beat”, and JB TV/The Good Guys Facebook;

leveraging significantweb traffic to drive additional sales opportunities and stickiness; and

extending theonline aislein relevantadjacencies.

¢ continueto leverage brand awareness and improve the customer experience:

national launch ofthe JB Hi-Fi Perks membership program for JB Hi-Fi Australia, with approximately
809,000 customersjoiningthe programsince November 2022; and
The Good Guys Gold Service Extras membership program currently has over 1.2 million active members;

¢ continued investmentin afit-for-purpose Group supply chainthat supports in-store and online fulfiiment:

highly focused on customer delivery solutions;
continued growth ofthe JB Hi-Fi Australia “on-demand” delivery service in partnership with Uber, with an
average delivery time under 60 minutes;
Launch of improved delivery options for The Good Guys’ customers focusing onincreased certainty,
transparency and choice;
continuingtheroll-outofthe Group’s big and bulky Home Delivery Centres (“HDC”) that enable an
improved customer experience and greater stock efficiency, and reinforce the Group’s safety first
approach:

= 2HY23 - Newcastle HDC opened and Brisbanerelocated to larger facilities; and

= Perth to relocate to larger facility in FY2024;
continual review of supply chain networkto ensureitremains fit for purpose, evolves with our multichannel
strategy and continues to improve the customer experience.

e opportunity to grow and expand the JBHi-Fi New Zealand business:

investmentin key hires to strengthen local capability and support growth;

refresh of store network to deliver an improved in-store customer shopping experience and engagement;
completion of 7 storerelays in FY2023 and relocation of 2 stores in early FY2024;

actively identifying potential new store opportunities to expand our reach, targeting 3-5new stores per year
overthe next3 years;

evolve multichannel offer including the re-platforming of the JB Hi-Fi NZ website to Shopify in FY2024;
increased focus on retail execution to deliver strong marketshare gains;

developing JB Hi-Fi New Zealand commercial channel; and

continued focus on thelearningand development of our team members;

o developing the Group’s commercialbusinesses for future growth:

evolvingthe brand to align to our key market segments: “JB Hi-Fi Business”; “JB Hi-Fi Education”; and
“The Good Guys Commercial”;

targeting growth in small to medium sized business sectors;

national proposition in afragmented market;

leveraging the Group’s retail proposition ofbestbrands, big range and low prices, as well as the Group’s
store network and supply chain and marketing capabilities;

augmented by access to extended business ranges, value-added services, and expertteams to support
businesses and education providers;

expertsupportviahelp desk and directaccess to account managers with continued investmentin our
sales team and inside sales channel;

continued investmentin e-commerce program, integrating legacy platforms and enabling self-service
transactions;

expansionofproductrange, integration with supplier catalogues, improving stock availability and fast
quotations;and

fast online order fulfilment, order tracking and integration with store click-and-collect (within 1 hour);
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focus on retail execution:
- leveragethe Group’s low price and discount heritage;
- utilising our supplier relationships to continue to create best in market offers and promotions;
- usingthebreadth of ourrange, brands and price points to give customers the choice to trade up ortrade
down;
- leverageour scale and productivity to manage costs;
- knowledgeable team members educating and engaging to create an entertaining and unique in-store
experience; and
- staying highlyfocused on actively providing our great value offering to our customers;
leveraging the efficiency of the model:
- lowcostculture with a focus on minimisingunnecessary expenditure;
- diverseproductcategories, brands and store locations;
- well managed stock position with high stock turns and low weeks’ cover; and
- flexible business model with the ability to respond quickly to changes in the consumer environment; and
continued mitigation ofthe business risks faced by the Group detailed on pages 24 to 26.

Environmental & Social risks

There are arange of environmental and social risks that could negatively impactthe Group:

if its activities adversely affectthe natural environmentor human society; and/or
if its activities are adversely affected by changes in the natural environmentor human society.

In orderto understand and prioritise theserisks, the Group has undertaken a materiality assessment utilising a
globally recognised assessmentframework. The most material environmental and social risksidentified and the
actions to mitigatethoserisks are set out below and additional information can be found in the Group’s 2023
Sustainability Report:

Employee safety, wellbeing and engagement-the Group creates and maintains a safe and healthy workplace
that strives to preventfatalities, minimise physicalinjuries and iliness and promote good mental health and
wellbeing by:maintaining astrong leadership focus and implementing a Group Strategy for safety; employing
a systematic approach to incident managementand risk mitigation supported by its Group Occupational
Health and Safety System; implementing policies and practices to provide a safe, inclusive and welcoming
environmentfor all ofits customers and employees, and by taking positive action to preventharassment,
discrimination or bullying; and establishing key performance indicators and safety targets to monitor and
improve performance. Key health & safety and engagementinitiatives implemented in FY2023 included:
ongoingfocus on, and enhancement of, mental health & wellbeing training; enhancementoftrainingon the
management of aggressive customers and shoplifters on the shopfloor and over the phone;focus on safe
manual handling practices and introduction of new manual handling equipmentto safely move “big & bulky”
products; and conducting full and “pulse” engagement surveys of our team members and an annual inclusion
survey.

Diversity and Inclusion - the Group recognises theimportance ofdiversity and understands that, by adapting to
the differing needs ofits employees, it will build stronger teams and create value for its customers and
shareholders. Initiatives implemented in FY2023 under the Group’s Diversity and Inclusion Strategy include:
further embedding behavioural competencies for all roles throughout the Group to identify high potential talent
and equalise recruitment & selection practices; continued promotion ofthe “Speak Up” initiative to create an
environmentwhere team members can bring forward any concerns relatingto inclusion, respect, and safety in
the workplace; and participation of additional team members in the Group’s Women in Leadership Program.
FY2023 also sawimprovements in gender diversity across the Group with an increasein the number of
women in leadership positions.

Strong governance, business ethicsand compliance - the Group’s stakeholders expectthe Group to act
responsibly and ethically and to comply with all relevantlaws and regulations. The Group acts with integrity
and transparency in conductingits businesses and has established a Statement of Values and a Code of
Conductto help guideits behaviours, together with additional policies and procedures including a Whistle-
blower Policy, an Anti-Bribery, Corruption & Fraud Policy, and a Securities Trading Policy, which clearly outine
the standards ofbehaviour required and which provide avenues to report wrongdoing. Governance and
oversightis also provided by the Group’s Board of Directors and Board Committees, including an Auditand
Risk Management Committee.
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Ethical sourcing and modern slavery-the Group recognises the importance of sourcing responsibly and the
potential social and environmental impacts thatits purchasing decisions can have. The Group also recognises
the risk of modern slavery and the potential for human rights abuses in its supply chainand is committed to
sourcing its products and services inan ethical and responsible manner and, in doing so, ensuring that
minimum standards concerning labour, health & safety, environmental managementand ethics are maintained
across thesupply chain. The Group has an Ethical Sourcing Policy outlining the minimum standards expected
of its suppliers. Supporting thispolicy is arisk-based approach to supplier due diligence, which helpsthe
Group assess compliance with the Policy. This includes acombination ofinherentrisk assessments conducted
by the Group, self-assessments completed by suppliers, and socialcompliance audits carried out by
independentparties on selected supplier manufacturing facilities. Initiatives undertakenin FY2023 include: the
submission ofthe Group’s third Modern Slavery Statement; continued membership of, and utilisation ofthe
resources of, the Responsible Business Alliance; enhanced processes for assessing social compliance audits
and prioritising engagement with suppliers on significantissues identified by these audits; the Group seeking
information from 100+ further suppliers in order to enable the Group to prioritise further engagementwith
thosethat may be at a higherrisk of modern slavery; and review ofthe Group’s cleaning supply chain to
identify risks and improvement opportunities.

Sustainable Packaging/Operational Waste and Recycling - the products thatthe Group sells and related
packaging can havean adverseimpacton the environmentifnotrecycled orre-used. To mitigate this risk, the
Group has operational processes and systems in place to facilitate the recycling of cardboard, paper, hard and
soft plastics and polystyrene waste. Processes are also in place to facilitate the salvage and re-use of
unwanted technologyfromboth the Group’s own operations, and from product returns by customers. In
FY2023 the Group continued to improve its existingwaste and recycling systems and processes including:
finalisingthe implementation of standardised waste and recycling systems and training across the store
networks; implementing packaging improvements for outbound deliveries in line with the 2025 National
Packaging Targets; ongoing work with private label suppliers to redesign packagingin line with the APCO
Sustainable Packaging Guidelines; puttingin place plans for atrial in early FY2024 for customer battery and e-
waste recyclingdrop-off points in selected stores; and the removal of expanded polystyrene (EPS) packaging
from all JB Hi-Fi core private label products.

Energy consumption and emissions reduction/Climate-related risks - the Group aims to ensure that its
business is climate resilient, and pro-actively respondsto the climate-related risks and opportunities that are
most material to the Group. The majority ofgreenhouse gas (GHG) emissions resulting fromthe Group’s
business operations come fromthe electricity used to power its store and warehouse network. In addition, the
Group consumes natural gas for heating, and fuel for company-owned cars. In FY2021 the Group set a
strategic goal to achieve net-zero direct(scope 1 and 2) carbon emissionsby 2030 (measured againstthe
Group’s FY2020 emissions (66,888 t-CO20-¢e)). As itworks towards this target, the Group’s activities in
FY2023 included: completing the installation of solar power generators atan additional 9 stores with a further
8 stores having received approval fromlandlords to proceed with installation; undertaking areview to evaluate
potential renewable energy options forthe Group;improving the way in which the Group records and monitors
energy consumption and emissions, which will improve our ability to identify opportunities to reduce
consumptionand/orincrease energy efficiency in the future; undertaking an estimate of its primary and
secondary scope 3 emissions; and further engaging with suppliers on emissions reduction. The Group
conducts an annual review of its key risks and opportunities relating to climate change and applies climate
scenario analysisto evaluate how the most material physical and transitionrisks will impactthe Group under
different climate scenarios. Each risk/opportunity is assigned to amember ofthe senior managementteam to
manage on an on-going basis, with progress reported to the Audit & Risk Management Committee twice a
year. These key risks and opportunities are setout in the 2023 Sustainability Report.

Data security and Privacy — the Group recognises the need to take appropriate action to secureits information
systems in order to reduce therisk of customer, employee orcompany information being stolen by cyber
criminals or otherwise accessed by unauthorised persons. The Group’s Technology Director is responsible for
co-ordinating the security ofthese information systems and has adedicated cyber security function which
monitors the environment, responds to events, assesses risk, and implements new capabilities. In addition,
relevantteam members receive regular privacy, cyber security and PCI-DSS training. In order thatthe Group
can conductits business, anumber of third parties used by the Group hold personal information ofthe Group’s
customers and employees. The Group works with these third parties to ensure that such informationis held
securely and is only held to the extent absolutely necessary.
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Productdesign, quality and safety —the Group expects its suppliers to ensure thatthe products thatitsells are
safe and seeks commitments in its contracts with suppliers that all products, packaging and documentation
supplied to the Group will comply with all relevantlaws and standards. The majority ofthe products sold by the
Group are manufactured by large, global brands who are well practised in ensuring compliance with relevant
legislation. The Group’s private label products (such as cables, headphones, chargers, and small electronic
appliances such asradios and turntables) are relatively low risk products in terms of product safety but, again,
manufacturers must ensure compliance. The Group pays particular attention to the safety of any products
containing button batteries which can poseaparticular risk to health and safety.
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SALES UPDATE AND TRADING OUTLOOK - as at 14 August 2023
July 2023 sales update
The Group provides the following sales update for the period 1 July 2023 to 31 July 2023:

e Total sales growth for JB Hi-Fi Australia was -1.8% with comparable sales growth of-2.9%. As compared to
pre Covid FY2019, total sales growth was 38.7%;

e Total sales growth for JB Hi-Fi New Zealand was 10.0% with comparable sales growth of10.0%. As compared
to pre Covid FY2019, total sales growth was 27.9%; and

e Total sales growth for The Good Guys was -12.0% with comparable sales growth of-12.0%. As compared to
pre Covid FY2019, total sales growth was 22.0%.

July sales are in line with the Group’s expectations cycling the elevated period fromlastyear. While total sales
continueto be well above pre Covid July FY2019, the Group has seen increased variability in category
performance.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (audited)
CONTENTS

. Summary (page 32)

. Executive KMP Remuneration (page 34)

. Non-Executive Director Remuneration (page 45)

. Total Key ManagementPersonnel Compensation (page 47)
. Other Information (page 47)

. Share Ownership-Based Remuneration Schemes (page 48)

SUMMARY

Remuneration overview

The Board recognises thatthe performance ofthe Group depends on the quality and motivation ofits people,
including both the Executive KMP (being those persons listed on page 34) and the approximately 14,500+
employees ofthe Group across Australiaand New Zealand. The Company’s remuneration strategy seeks to
appropriately reward, incentivise and retain key employees. The Board aims to achieve this by setting competitive
remuneration packages (“packages”) thatinclude a mix offixed remuneration and incentives underthe Company’s
Variable Reward Plan (“VRP”).

Snapshot

Another _year of financial_and strategic_achievement

The 2023 financial year has been another outstanding year for the Group and follows the exceptional results
achieved in the previous threefinancial years. The performance ofthe Group was very strong throughoutthe year,
with the Group’s unique consumer electronics and home appliance offering resonating with its customers and
strong execution by managementgrowingits marketsharein a challengingeconomic environment.

This strong performance has been reflected in the Group’s financial results, with managementhaving delivered
record revenue (up 4.3%) and EPS (up 0.1%), cycling record results in FY2022. Over the four years from FY2019 to
FY2023, managementhave delivered four-year absolute revenue growth 0f35.7% and compound annual revenue
growth of 7.9%, and four-year absolute EPS growth of120.7% and compound annual EPS growth 0f21.9%.

In additionto driving these financial outcomes, managementhas also executed on a number ofkey strategic
initiatives aimed at further developing and reinforcingthe Group overthelongerterm. Theseinclude further
enhancingthe Group’s multichannel capability, improving the Group’s supply chain and successfullyimplementing
sustainability initiatives.

As a resultof the above, and despite macroeconomicheadwinds, the Group has continued to grow dividends paid
to shareholders to new record levels of $382.7m in FY2023 and generate absolute total shareholder return of more
than 21.7% in the past 12 months. This has resulted in excellentoutcomes for shareholders, and is reflected in the
Executive KMP VRP achievementoutcomes forthe year as set outbelow.

Executive KMP FY2023 Incentive Achievement

Vesting outcomes in respect of FY2023 VRP incentives resulted in Executive KMP earning between 95% and 97%
of rewards available for FY2023.

The VRP scorecard for FY2023 provided that 75% of available rewards were linked to financial measures, primarily
four-year compound annual EPS growth, in order to reflectthe elevated demand experienced in FY2020 to FY2022
and to address the potential volatility ofthe trading environmentin FY2023. 100% of available rewards for financial
performance were earned by each Executive KMP as a result ofthe exceptional four-year compound annual EPS
growth achieved (21.9%).

The remaining 25% of available rewards were dependentupon the achievementofvarious strategic measures
deemed relevantforthe individual executive, and between 80% and 90% of available rewards for this strategic
componentwere earned by Executive KMP. Further detail is set out on pages 37 to 39.
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As with recent years, 25% of VRP rewards achieved in relation to FY2023 are paid in cash and theremaining 75%
of the VRP rewards achieved in relation to FY2023 are delivered in deferred shares. One third ofthese shares will
be released from dealing restrictionsin each of August 2024, August 2025 and August 2026, such that the vast

majority of VRP rewards will therefore be subject to share price performance and align Executive KMP with the
experience of shareholders over the mediumto longer term.
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EXECUTIVE KMP REMUNERATION
Details of executive key management personnel

The following executive directorsand Group executives (Executive KMP) are considered members of key
management personnel for reporting purposes. Each ofthem was engaged throughoutand sincethe end ofthe
financial year.

Terry Smart Group Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Nick Wells Group ChiefFinancial Officer and Executive Director
Cameron Trainor Managing Director —JB Hi-Fi Australia

Biag Capasso Managing Director—The Good Guys

Strong Correlation between Group Performance and KMP reward

The Board believes that remuneration for Executive KMP should be fair and reasonable, structured effectively to
attract, motivate, retain and reward valued executives, and designedto produce value for shareholders.

The financial performance ofthe Group over the pastfive years and the significant value created for shareholders
over this period is summarised in the table below.

FY2019(ii) FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
Financial results:
Sales ($m) 7,095.3 7,918.9 8,916.1 9,232.0 9,626.4
EBIT ($m) 372.9 483.3 743.1 794.6 769.0
NPAT ($m) 249.8 302.3 506.1 544.9 524.6
Basic EPS (cents) 217.4 263.1 440.8 479.5 479.9
Shareholder returns:
Company share price at theend of the
reporting period () 25.85 43.03 50.58 38.46 43.75
Dividendgpaidto shareholders during 157 4 1723 310.2 310.2 382.7
the financial year ($m)
Off-market share buy-back ($m) - - - 250.0 -
Shareholderyalue created —rolling last 1.969.3 3.380.1 40157 23305 3.254.1
5 years ($m)()
Shareholder value created — CAGR last 15% 229, 21% 12% 16%

5 years (%)

(i) Shareholder value created is measured as the increasein the enterprise value (the sum of market capitalisationand net debt), plus cash
dividends and share buy-backs paid during the financialyear.
(ii) FY2019 results are prior to the adoption of AASB 16 Leases.
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The effectiveness ofthe Executive KMPs’ performance related remuneration in driving performanceis reflected in
the long term growth ofthe share price ofthe Company. The following graph plots the JB Hi-Fi closing share price
and the ASX 200 on a daily basis over the pastfive years between 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2023. The JB Hi-Fi
closing share price compound annual growth rate between 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2023 is 14.2%, whilstthe ASX
200 compound annual growthrate over the same period is 3.1%.
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Executive KMP remuneration packages — FY2023

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee annually reviews the remuneration packages of Executive KMP
and makes recommendations to the Board. Remuneration packages are reviewed with due regard to performance
and data on remuneration paid by comparable companies. Where appropriate, the Remuneration and Nominations
Committee may receive expertindependentadviceregarding remuneration levels required to attract, retain and
compensate Executive KMP given the nature oftheir work and responsibilities.

In setting theremuneration packages for FY2023, the Board and the Remuneration and Nominations Committee
considered anumber of factors including Group performance, current market practice, external benchmarking, and
the skills and experiencerequired for, and complexity and responsibilities of, theroles. The Company benchmarks
its Remuneration Packages for Executive KMP againstthe companies comprising the ASX 51 — 150 and the ASX
76 — 125 indices. The Group’s policy in relation to executive remuneration is to target total remuneration levels (i.e.
fixed pay plus the maximum opportunity under the Variable Reward Plan) at a level between the 60t and 75th
percentile of peers. This is because the Board believes executive reward should approachtop quartile outcomes if
the challenging targets setunder theincentive plans are achieved.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee also considered current market conventions with regard to the
splits between fixed remuneration and incentive elements. The package splits for FY2023 were as follows:

Executive ‘ Fixed ‘ Incentive | Total

T. Smart 33% 67% 100%
N. Wells 38% 62% 100%
C. Trainor 37% 63% 100%
B. Capasso 37% 63% 100%

The remuneration of Executive KMP is directly related to the performance ofthe Group through thelinking ofthe
incentives to certain financial and strategic measures as detailed previouslyand below.
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Further details on each of the key elements of Executive KMP remuneration for the 2023 financial year are set out
below.

Fixed remuneration — FY2023

Fixed remuneration is paid by way ofbase salary, motor vehicle allowances and superannuation. No elements of
fixed remuneration are dependenton performance conditions.

For all Executive KMP otherthan B. Capasso, fixed remuneration was increased by 3% for FY2023 taking the
factors referred to above into account. B. Capasso received a 10% increasein fixed remuneration (increasing to
$605,000), recognising thathis remuneration on becoming Managing Director of The Good Guys in August2021
had been set at a level allowing scope for appropriateincreases as he gained experience and performed in therole.

Variable Reward Plan (VRP) Incentive — FY2023

The Group operates avariable reward plan to incentivise, attract and retain valued executives. The VRP allows for
flexibility in setting performance targets year by year to take into accountchangingtrading conditions, whichis
particularly importantin afast moving and volatile retail environment. It therefore provides a more motivating
remuneration framework for Executive KMP, as well as greater alignmentwith shareholders, than traditional
structures. Following areview of the Executive KMP remuneration structure for FY2023 and the performance ofthe
Group, the Board remained of the view that the VRP was the most appropriate formofincentive plan.

Underthe VRP, performanceis assessed at theend of each financial year againstascorecard of robust measures,
and awards under the VRP for Executive KMP are delivered:

e 25% in cash atthe end ofthe one-year performance period; and

e 75% inrestricted shares, to be released progressively in equal tranches over years 2, 3 and 4.

By granting the majority of the reward as shares that are restricted over the medium to longer term and are subject
to long termshare pricerisk and clawback, the VRP provides for strong alignmentwith shareholders. This,
combined with the minimum shareholding guidelines as setout on page 44, encourages Executive KMP to think
and act like shareholders and to make decisionsin thelongterminterests ofthe Group.

During therestricted period, dividends are paid on the restricted shares and the executive may exercise votes
attaching to these shares. The market value of a share used to calculate the number ofrestricted shares granted
will be the volume weighted average price of shares traded on the ASX in the 5 trading days immediately following
the release ofthe Company’s financial results for the year to which the award relates.

All rewards underthe VRP are subject to clawback at the Board’s discretion inthe eventoffraud, dishonesty,
material misstatement, material breach or negligence by the executive and in certain other circumstances.

Subject to the Board exercising its discretion to the contrary, an executive will notbe eligible to receive a VRP

award in respectofa particular performance period if, duringthat period, the executive ceases to be employed, or

has given noticeofhis or herresignation fromemploymentor has been given notice of termination from

employment. An executive who ceases to be employed during the restriction period may, subjectto the Board’s

discretion:

o forfeitthe restricted shares ifthey are a “bad leaver” (termination for cause orresignation to work for a
competitor); or

o retain the restricted shares, subjectto the restrictions, ifthey are a “good leaver” (retirement, redundancy,
disablement, mental/terminal iliness or death).

Treatment of restricted shares where an executive leaves in other circumstances is atthe Board’s discretion.

Further detail on the performance measures for each of the Executive KMP under the FY2023 VRP is set out below.
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FY2023 VRP incentive scorecard - performance conditions and outcomes

Underthe VRP, performanceis assessed at the end of each financial year againstascorecard of robust measures.
75% ofthe rewards under the plan for each executive are dependenton financial targets and the remaining 25% of
the scorecard are based on strategic measures approved by the Board and aligned with the Group’s long term
corporate plans. Thefinancial targets in the scorecard are predominantly based on Group EPS, with some
executives also having targets relating to aspects ofthe business for which that executive is responsible or where
particular focus is required.

In setting the FY2023 financial targets for the VRP in late FY2022, the Board noted the elevated demand in FY2020
- FY2022 and the potential volatility ofthe trading environment going forward. Taking these factors into accountthe
Board determined thatthe FY2023 financial targets for the VRP would be based on a four year compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) from FY2019 and set growth targets under the VRP of between 14.5% and 17.3% compound
EPS growth over this four year period.

The four year compound annual EPS growth from FY2019 to FY2023 was 21.9% (an increasefrom217.4 cpsto
479.9 cpsin four years), significantly exceeding the Company’s stretch targetof 17.3% EPS CAGR, noting EPS has
more than doubled in four years. Brand EBIT growth targets for the JB Hi-Fiand TGG Managing Directors were also
exceeded. As a result, 100% of available rewards for the financial performance componentwere earned by each of
the Executive KMP.

For strategic measures, between 80% and 90% of available rewards were earned.

A summary of FY2023 VRP achievementoutcomes for each member of KMP, measured againstthefinancial and
strategic measures, is set outin the table below with additional detail on pages 38 and 39.

Summary of VRP _KPI Achievement

Achievement DeliveredIn
Maximum VRP Actual VRP Restricted
Incentive Incentive Cash” Shares‘”
Opportunity Financial Strategic Achieved (25%) (75%)
$ Measures Measures Total $ $ $

T. Smart 3,605,000 100% 80% 95% 3,424,750 856,188 2,568,562
N. Wells 1,596,500 100% 83% 96% 1,528,649 382,162 1,146,487
C. Trainor 1,905,500 100% 90% 97% 1,856,672 464,168 1,392,504
B. Capasso 1,028,500 100% 82% 95% 980,932 245,233 735,699
8,135,500 100% 84% 96% 7,791,003 1,947,751 5,843,252

(i) The VRP cash earned in FY2023will be paid in August2023.

(i) The VRP Shares earned in FY2023 will be allocated in August 2023. The allocation of VRP shares to the Executive Directors, T. Smartand N.
Wells, will be subject tosharehdder approval at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held in October 2023. If shareholderapprova by
simple majority of those voting is not obtained, the Board wil consider alternative remuneration arrangements for T. Smart and N. Wels which
are consistent withthe Company’s remuneration principles and policy.
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MEASURE OUTCOME GROUP | GROUP MD MD
CEO CFO JB HI-FI TGG
FINANCIAL (75%)
Group EPS 21.9% 4 year EPS CAGR from FY2019. EPS for FY2023 was At At At At
479.9 cents pershare compared to 217 4 cents per share in Maximum | Maximum | Maximum | Maximum
FY2019.
JB Hi-Fi 16.3% 4 year EBIT CAGR from FY2019. EBIT for FY2023 was n/a n/a At n/a
Australia EBIT | $551.9mcompared to $301.7min FY2019. Maximum
The Good Guys | 30.7% 4 year EBIT CAGR from FY2019. EBIT for FY2023 was n/a n/a n/a At
EBIT $213.0mcompared to $72.9min FY2019. Maximum
Financial outcome 100% 100% 100% 100%
STRATEGIC (25%)
Group / Strong results in OHS metrics as set out in the Sustainability At Target | At Target Above At Target
Divisional OHS | Reportand rollout of key strategic OHS initiatives including: Target
e ongoing focus on, and enhancement of, mental health &
wellbeing training;
e enhancement of trainingon the management of
aggressive customers and shoplifters, on the shopfloor
and overthe phone; and
o focus on safe manualhandling practices and introduction
of new manual handling equipment to safely move “big &
bulky” products.
For the MD JB Hi-Fi Australia and MD TGG, the individualis
only assessed against the OHS performance/initiatives for
their division.
Diversity & Improvement in diversity statistics including: At Target | AtTarget | AtTarget | At Target
Inclusion e increase in female seniormanagers across the Group
from 21% to 25%;
. increase in female territory/area managers from 17% to
28%; and
. increase in female store managers from24% to 27 %,
and implementation of strategic Diversity & Inclusion initiatives
including:
e furtherembedding behavioural competencies forall roles
throughout the Group, to identify high potential talent and
equalise recruitment & selection practices;
e continued promotion of the “Speak Up”initiative to create
an environment where team members can bring forward
any concerns relating to inclusion, respect, and safety in
the workplace;
. updated Equal Opportunity and Workplace Behaviour
Training and annual engagement and inclusion surveys;
and
e participation of additional team members in the Group’s
Women in Leadership Program.
Succession/ Several internal promotions to senior management positions At Target Above Above Above
Talent and implementation of strategic Succession/Talentinitiatives Target Target Target

including:

e continued focus on succession framework for
management positions within the Group;

e ongoing use of Talent Mapping using the Group’s
Competency Framework across the businesses,
designed to identify key behavioural competencies
specific to each role type within the businesses and assist
in identifying and growing diverse talent in a structured
and measurable way; and

e useofindividualdevelopment plans for high performers.
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MD
JB HI-FI

MD
TGG

Group /Brand
Strategic
Growth
Initiatives

Significant strategic initiatives implemented including:

ongoing implementation of turnaround/growth plan for the
JB Hi-Fi NZ business;

new store formats and layouts tested and trialled at
multiple locations;

ongoing implementation of long term growth initiatives,
including new product lines, “multichannel”, and supply
chain initiatives; and

identification and evaluation of potential growth
opportunities.

Above
Target

At Target

At
Maximum

At Target

Investor
Relations

Maintained strong investorrelations engagement in an
uncertain economic environment.

CFO continued to lead strong investorengagement on
financial performance and ESG issues.

At Target

Above
Target

n/a

n/a

Sustainability
Initiatives

Driving and supporting Group Sustainability initiatives
including;

implementation of initiatives to achieve “net zero” target
(Scope 1and 2)by 2030, including identification and
implementation of energy reduction initiatives in store
network, e.g, installation of solarpanels and LED lights at
certain stores;

driving and supporting the Group’s initiatives on ethical
sourcing/modern slavery;

implementation of waste management initiatives and roll-
out of the Group’s sustainable packaging strategy for
private label products; and

driving workplace giving program membership and
initiatives.

At Target

Above
Target

At Target

At Target

Brand
Employee
Engagement

Continued focus on protecting and strengthening the Group’s
culture and attracting and retaining team members including:

good participation andresults in both engagement and
inclusion surveys;

ongoing professional developmentand leadership training;
and

ongoing focus on flexible working arrangements.

n/a

n/a

Above
Target

At Target

Strategic outcome

80%

83%

90%

82%

FINAL OUTCOME (% of maximum)

95%

96%

97%

95%
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Group CEO VRP incentive _achievement over the last 5 financial years

Executive KMP incentive achievement outcomes continue to align with the financial performance and strategic
objectives ofthe Group. The table below sets out the Group CEO'’s incentive achievementoverthelast5 years
underthe VRP.

Group Financial Target Non-Financial

Financial | Incentive Target Actual Target Total
Year (EPS Growth) EPS Growth Achievement Achievement Achievement
2019 0-10% 7.1% 77% 74% 76%
2020 0-10% 23.6%(M 91%(i) 78% 87%
2021 0-10% 87.6%ii) 100% 88% 97%(v)
2022 12.4% - 16.0% V) 30.2%W) 100% 79% 95%
2023 14.5% - 17.3% M) 21.9% V) 100% 80% 95%

(i) Based on statutory profit prior to the impact of AASB 16 Leases.

(i) FY2020 achievement of Group Financial Target based on the Group’s (pre-Covid-19) guidance of $270 million rather than reported NPAT resut
of $302.3m.

(i) FY2021 EPS growth from the Group’s FY2020 $270 milion (pre-Covid-19) NPAT guidance.

(iv) Unadjusted achievement of 97%, adjusted achievement of 24.25% taking account FY2021 VRP restricted share rewards foregonefollowing R.
Murray’s resignation and scheduled departure in early FY2022.

(v) 3year EPS CAGR from FY2019 to FY2022.

(vi) 4year EPS CAGR from FY2019 to FY2023.
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The compensation for each ofthe Executive KMP for FY2023 was as follows:

JB Hi-Fi Limited
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Post-
employ-
ment
Short-term employee benéefits benefits Share based payments
2023
Total short
Salary, fees term Total share
& VRP employee Super- - VRP. based
allowances Cash®® benefits annuation Options™ Shares®™) payments Total
$ $ 3 $ $ $ $ 3
T. Smart 1,722,715 856,188 | 2,578,903 27,500 - 2,083,942 | 2,083,942 4,690,345
N. Wells 939,819 382,162 1,321,981 27,190 - 1,082,441 1,082,441 2,431,612
C. Trainor 1,079,254 464,168 1,543,422 27,500 — 1,329,438 1,329,438 2,900,360
B. Capasso 576,654 245,233 821,887 27,500 23,706 494,128 517,834 1,367,221
4,318,442 1,947,751 6,266,193 109,690 23,706 4,989,949 | 5,013,655 11,389,538

(i) The VRP Cash earned in FY2023 will be paid in August2023.
(ii) Performance based.
(i) Inaccordance with Accounting Standards, remunerationincludes the amortisation of the fair value of optionsissued in prior years under the
Group share option plans thatare expected to vest, less any write-back on options lapsed or expected to lapse as a result of actua or expected
performance against non-market hurdles. The fair value of options is measured at grant datein accordance withthe relevant accounting
standard and progressively allocated to profitand loss over the vesting period of the option.
(iv) Inaccordance with Accounting Standards, remunerationincludes the amortisation of the value of VRPthatis paid in restricted shares. The value
of shares is progressively allocated to profit and loss over the restriction period of the share.

The FY2023 Maximum Potential accountingexpense and Actual accounting expense recognised in accordance
with Accounting Standardsfor the performance-based elements of Executive KMP remuneration is set out below:

VRP Cash VRP Shares!
Maximum Potential Actual Maximum Potential Actual
% of total % of total % of total % of total
2023 potential actual potential actual
$ remuneration remuneration $ remuneration $ remuneration
T. Smart 901,250 19% 856,188 18% 2,187,796 45% 2,083,942 44%
N. Wells 399,125 16% 382,162 16% 1,132,097 45% 1,082,441 45%
C. Trainor 476,375 16% 464,168 16% 1,383,640 47% 1,329,438 46%
B. Capasso 257,125 18% 245,233 18% 518,656 37% 494,128 36%
2,033,875 17% 1,947,751 17% 5,222,189 45% 4,989,949 44%

(i) The maximum potential and actual values represent the amortisation of the VRP restricted shares over therestriction period of the share in
accordance with Accounting Standards.
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The compensation for each of the Executive KMP for FY2022 was as follows:
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Post-
employ-
ment
Short-term employee benéefits benefits Share based payments
2022
Total short
Salary, fees term Total share
& VRP employee Super- ) VRP based
allowances  Cash®d benefits annuation Options®® Shares® payments Total
$ $ 3 $ $ $ 3
T. Smart 1,672,500 829,063 | 2,501,563 27,500 31,979 1,377,767 1,409,746 3,938,809
N. Wells 916,425 371,273 1,287,698 27,319 9,625 1,119,876 1,129,501 2,444,518
C. Trainor 1,047,500 441,398 1,488,898 27,500 15,319 1,248,915 1,264,234 2,780,632
B. Capasso™ 432,067 162,025 594,092 22,740 42,094 206,936 249,030 865,862
R. Murray“’) 255,288 — 255,288 4,327 31,514 - 31,514 291,129
4,323,780 1,803,759 | 6,127,539 109,386 130,531 3,953,494 | 4,084,025 10,320,950

In accordance with Accounting Standards, remunerationincludes the amortisation of the fair value of options issued in prior years under the
Group share option plans thatare expected to vest, less any write-back on options lapsed or expected to lapse as a result of actua or expected
performance against non-market hurdles (“Option Accounting Value”). The fair value of options is measured at grant date in accordance with the
relevant accounting standard and progressively allocated to profitand loss over the vesting period of the option.

Performance based (other than as set outin note (vi) below and the options grantedto B. Capasso prior tobecoming an Executive KMP).

In accordance with Accounting Standards, remunerationincludes the amortisation of the value of VRPthatis paid in restricted shares. The value
of shares is progressively allocated to profit and loss over the restriction period of the share.

B. Capasso became a KMP on 27 August 2021 following his appointment as Managing Director for The Good Guys. The amounts disclosed for
B. Capasso for FY2022 are in respect of his time asa KMP from 27 August 2021.

R. Murray left the Company on 27 August2021. The amounts disclosed for R. Murray are for the period of his employment until 27 August 2021.
In addition to the amortisation of his “standard” performance based FY2022 VRP amount of $986,543 shown below, the figurefor N. Wells
includes amortisation of $133,333 relating to a one-off grant of restricted sharesin 2019, to ensurethe Group retained his services over the next
3 years. The grant value was equal to $800,000, being one year's fixed remuneration at that time, with half of the shares restricted until August
2021 and half restricted until August 2022. The shares will be forfeited in the event that N. Wells resigns prior to the end of the restriction period,
but retained if employmentis terminated for reasons other than for cause. In all other respects the restricted shares will be treatedin the same
way as restricted shares granted under the Company’s Variable Reward Plan in August2019. In accordance with Accounting Standards, the
value of shares is progressively amortised to profit and loss over the restriction period of the shares.

(vii) The VRP Cash earned in FY2022 was paid in August 2022.

Fully paid ordinary shares of JB Hi-Fi Limited held by Executive KMP

Received on

(

Balance at Granted as exercise of Net other Balance at Balance held

2023 1 July 2022 Compensation® options change 30 June 2023 nominally
No. No. No. No. No. No.

T. Smart 107,152 56,496 - (35,000) 128,648 -
N. Wells 51,742 25,300 - (32,549) 44,493 _
C. Trainor 92,138 30,079 - (67,043) 55,174 -
B. Capasso 7,733 13,352 2,617 — 23,702 -
258,765 125,227 2,617 (134,592) 252,017 -

)

Shares allocated under the Company’s Variable Reward Plan.
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Share options of JB Hi-Fi Limited held by Executive KMP

Otherthan B. Capasso (who became an Executive KMP in August 2021), no Executive KMP held any options
during FY2023. Some ofthe options granted to B. Capasso prior to himbecoming an Executive KMP vested in
FY2023 and B. Capasso exercised these options. Further details ofthe terms ofthese optionsareincluded under
the heading “Group Incentive Plans” on page 48.

Balance Options

2023 Balance at Granted as Net other Balance at vested at vested
1 July 2022 compensation Exercised change 30June 2023 30 June 2023 duringyear

No. No. No. No. No. No. No.

B. Capasso 4,659 - (2,617) - 2,042 - 2,617

Options_exercised during the financial year

The following table summarises the value of optionsexercised duringthe financial year by B. Capasso. All of these
optionswere zero exercise priceoptions.

Value of
Options options
exercised Share price  exercised —at
and shares Exercise at exercise the exercise
received price date date(®
Series No. Exercise date $ $ $
B. Capasso" 170 1,136  22/08/2022 - 43.77 49,723
175 922 22/08/2022 - 43.77 40,356
177 559 22/08/2022 - 43.77 24 467
2,617 114,546

(i)  Options did not contain a performance condition as they were issued to B. Capasso prior to becoming a KMP.
(i)  The value of options exercised duringthe yearis calculated based on the share price at the exercise date multiplied by the number of options
exercised.

Options _granted during the financial year

There were no shareoptionsgranted during FY2023 to Executive KMP (or the five mosthighly remunerated officers
ofthe Company). Instead, these employees participatein the VRP as set out on page 36.

Options lapsed during the financial year

There were no options issued to the identified key management personnel thatlapsed during the financial year.

Options _granted, exercised and lapsed since the end of the financial year

Sincethe end ofthe financial year, no options have been granted to Executive KMP (or the five mosthighly
remunerated officers ofthe Company), and no options issued to Executive KMP (or the five most highly
remunerated officers ofthe Company) have been exercised orlapsed.
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Key terms of Executive KMP employment agreements

The remuneration and other terms of employmentfor each ofthe Executive KMP are set outin individual Company
employmentagreements. None of these executives are subject to a fixed term of employment.

Name Notice Periods/Termination Payment/Non-compete

T. Smart 12 months’notice (or paymentin lieu)
12 months’posttermination non-compete and non-solicitation restriction

N. Wells 6 months’notice (or paymentin lieu)
6 months’posttermination non-compete and non-solicitation restriction

C. Trainor 9 months’notice (or paymentin lieu) ifterminated by the Company
6 months’noticeifnoticeis given by the executive
6 months’posttermination non-compete and non-solicitation restriction

B. Capasso 6 months’notice (or paymentin lieu)
6 months’posttermination non-compete and non-solicitation restriction

Each Executive KMP may be terminated immediately for serious misconduct. In no instance would apaymentin lieu
of notice exceed the termination payments limits setoutin the Corporations Act 2001.

Each ofthe Executive KMP service contracts contains contractual entittiements for the Company to clawback
incentiveremuneration in the eventoffraud, dishonesty, or material misstatements in, oromissions from, the
Company’s financial statements, or misstatements concerning the satisfaction ofa performance condition.

Minimum shareholding guidelines

Building Executive KMP shareholdings is a priority ofthe Board in the context ofretention, and to ensure Executive
KMP are invested in thelong term success ofthe Group and aligned with shareholder interests.

In conjunction with introducing the VRP, a Minimum Shareholding requirement for Executive KMP was introduced in
FY2019, being:

. 1.5 times fixed pay for the Group CEO; and

. 1.0 times fixed pay for the other Executive KMP.

This level of shareholding is required to be built over 5 years from the introduction ofthe VRP (or appointment, if
later).

As at 30 June 2023, all Executive KMP exceeded the Minimum Shareholding requirement.

Executive KMP FY2024 Incentives

The Company will retain the same structure for FY2024 executive KMP remuneration as was used in FY2023. The
target for the Group financial componentofthe FY2024 VRP (EPS growth) will be set by reference to annual
budgets, longertermcorporate plans and current market expectations, taking account of the effects of elevated
sales and profitin FY2020 — FY2023 and the potential volatility ofthe trading environmentgoing forward.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
FY2023 Non-Executive Director Remuneration

The following persons acted as non-executive directors ofthe Company both during and since the end ofthe
financial year and are considered members of key management personnel for FY2023:

Stephen Goddard Non-executive Director, Chair ofthe Board and ofthe Remuneration and Nominations
Committee

Beth Laughton Non-executive Director, Chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and
Member of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee

Mark Powell Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and
Member of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee

Geoff Roberts Non-executive Director and Member ofthe Audit and Risk Management Committee

Richard Uechtritz Non-executive Director

Melanie Wilson Non-executive Director and Member ofthe Audit and Risk Management Committee

The overriding objective ofthe JB Hi-Fi remuneration policies with regard to non-executive directors is to ensure the
Company is able to attract and retain non-executive directors with the skills and experience to enable the Board to
dischargeits oversightand governance responsibilities in an effective and diligentmanner. The Board also believes
that remuneration for non-executive directors should reflect the time commitment and responsibilities oftherole.

The fees payableto non-executive directorsfor FY2023 are set outbelow. Noting thatthere had been no increase
in Committee fees since FY2018, the Company conducted benchmarking of Committee fees againstcomparable
companies, and consequently increased these fees to ensure that they remained competitive in the market. There
were no changes to the fees for membership of, or Chairing, the Board.

Fees Fees
FY2023 FY2022

Role $ $
Chair of the Board $318,000 $318,000
Non-executive director $142,000 $142,000
Additional _Committee Fees

Remuneration and Nominations Committee Chair $28,000 $25,000
Audit and Risk Management Committee Chair $35,000 $32,000
Audit and Risk Management Committee member $17,500 $16,000
Remuneration and Nominations Committee member $15,500 $14,000

Aggregate non-executive director remuneration for FY2023 was within the amount determined by the Company in
its Annual General Meeting on 26 October 2017 being $1,500,000.

Superannuation contributions are made by the Company on behalfofnon-executive directors inline with statutory
requirements and are included in the fees. It is the policy ofthe Company notto pay lump sum retirementbenefits to
non-executive directors.

It isthe policyofthe Company notto have any elements of non-executive director remuneration atrisk. Specifically,
non-executive directorsdo notreceive any bonus payments and are notentitled to participatein any Company
shareoption plans orthe VRP. Accordingly,in FY2023, there were no share options granted to non-executive
directors, and no optionswere exercised, vested or lapsed.

In orderto further align non-executive directors with shareholders ofthe Company, a Minimum Shareholding
requirementfor non-executive directors was introduced in October 2018, being 1 times the base board fees for
each non-executive director. This level of shareholdingis required to be built over 5 years fromthe introduction of
the policy (or appointment, iflater). As at 30 June 2023, all non-executive directorsexceeded the Minimum
Shareholding requirement.
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Non-Executive KMP Remuneration (Statutory Tables)

The compensation for each Non-Executive Directoris setoutbelow:

2023
Short-term Post-
employee employment
benefits benefits
Fees Superannuation Total
3 $ $
S. Goddard 320,708 25,292 346,000
B. Laughton 174,208 18,292 192,500
M. Powell 158,371 16,629 175,000
G. Roberts 144,344 15,156 159,500
R. Uechtritz 128,507 13,493 142,000
M. Wilson 144,344 15,156 159,500
1,070,482 104,018 1,174,500
2022
Short-term Post-
employee employment
benefits benefits
Fees Superannuation Total
3 $ $
S. Goddard 319,432 23,568 343,000
B. Laughton 170,904 17,090 187,994
M. Powell 156,360 15,636 171,996
G. Roberts 143,640 14,364 158,004
R. Uechtritz 129,096 12,910 142,006
M. Wilson 143,640 14,364 158,004
1,063,072 97,932 1,161,004

Fully paid ordinary shares of JB Hi-Fi Limited held by Non-Executive Directors

2023 Received on
Balance at Granted as exercise of Net other Balance at Balance held
1 July 2022 Compensation options change 30 June 2023 nominally
No. No. No. No. No. No.
S. Goddard 4,500 - - - 4,500 -
B. Laughton 5,804 - - - 5,804 -
M. Powell 4,000 - - - 4,000 -
G. Roberts 3,000 - - 1,000 4,000 -
R. Uechtritz 4,816 - - - 4,816 -
M. Wilson 1,500 — — 2,000 3,500 —
23,620 - - 3,000 26,620 -
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TOTAL KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (Statutory Table)

Key managementpersonnel for FY2023 include the non-executive directors and the Executive KMP listed on page
34.

The aggregate compensation ofthe key management personnel ofthe Group is set out below:

Consolidated
2023 2022
$ $
Short-term employee benefits
Salary, fees & allowances 5,388,924 5,386,852
VRP Cash 1,947,751 1,803,759
7,336,675 7,190,611
Post-employment benefits
Superannuation 213,708 207,318
Share based payments
Options expense 23,706 130,531
VRP expense 4,989,949 3,953,494
5,013,655 4,084,025
Total compensation of Key Management Personnel 12,564,038 11,481,954

OTHER INFORMATION

Board policy with reqard to executives limiting _their exposure to risk in relation to equity options

The Company'’s Securities Trading Policy prohibits directors, executives, senior managementand other specified
employees fromaltering the economic benefitorrisk derived by themin relation to any unvested equity options that
they hold. The Policy also requires directorsand Group executives to obtain prior written approval fromthe Chair of
the Board before altering the economic benefitorrisk derived by themin relation to any shares or vested optionsin
JB Hi-Fiheld by them. Each year directors and Executive KMP are required to sign adeclaration thatthey arein
compliance with all elements ofthe JB Hi-Fi Securities Trading Policy. These declarations have been received in
relation to FY2023 from all directors and Executive KMP.
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SHARE OWNERSHIP-BASED REMUNERATION SCHEMES

Group Incentive Plans

The Group has the following share ownership-based remuneration schemes for Executive KMP, other executives
and non-executive management (excluding non-executive directors).

Variable Reward Plan (as detailed on page 36)

Participants are Executive KMP, other executives and selected senior management.

Employee Share Option Plan (as detailed below)

Under the Employee Share Option Plan, participants are granted options to acquire shares in JB Hi-Fi Limited.
Participants are executives and management. With effect from FY2019, Executive KMP no longer participatein this
scheme and, instead, participate in the Variable Reward Plan. Of current Executive KMP, only B. Capasso has
optionsoutstanding under the plan, being options granted to him before he became an Executive KMP in August
2021.

Options underthisPlan which are currently “on foot” or which vested, were exercised, or expired in FY2022 or

FY2023 havethe following features:

e Issue Price - noissuepriceis payableon theissue ofan option;

e ExercisePrice - no exercise priceis payable on the exercise of an option;

e Performance Conditions - foroptionsissued to Executive KMP and other executives, the majority of options are
subject to performance conditionsbased on EPS growth. Some ofthe options issued to certain senior
managers are also subjectto performance hurdles. These performance hurdles require compound annual
earnings per share growth of between 4% and 15% perannum. To the extent that a performance conditionis
notachieved in oneyear, the hurdleis compounded and reassessed in each subsequentyear, until the earlier
of theconditionbeing satisfied or the option expiring. However, no retestingtakes place in the year of expiry;

e Service Conditions —the optionsissued to Executive KMP and other executives in FY2017 (inclusive) vesta
third each on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaryofthe grantdate provided that the executive remains
employed atthat time. Options issued to Executive KMP and other executives in FY2018 vestonehalf each on
each ofthe third and fourth anniversaries ofthe grantdate, provided the relevant executive remains employed
at thattime. Optionsissuedto certain (non KMP) executives since FY2019 vest a third each on the second,
third and fourth anniversary of grantdate provided thatthe executive remains employed at thattime. For all
optionsissued to non-executive management, options vestathird each on the second, third and fourth
anniversary ofgrantdate provided thatthe non-executive manager remains employed at that time;

e Vesting - all conditions must be satisfied for an option to vest;

e Expiry-optionsissued to non-executive managementgenerally expire five years after they are issued. Options
issued to Executive KMP and other executives priorto 30 June 2017 generally expire six years after they are
issued. Options issued to Executive KMP and other executives between 1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018 expire
five years after they are issued. Optionsissued to certain (non KMP) executives since FY2019 also expire five
years after they are issued. All unvested options generally expireimmediately upontermination of employment
although, dependingupontheterms of issue, the Board may have discretionto allow the options to continue or
waive vesting conditionsin certain circumstances. Upontermination ofemployment, vested options either
expire upon termination, 30 days after termination, or continue in force depending upon the circumstances of
the employee’s exitand the terms of issue;

e Valuation - optionsare valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which takes into accountthe
exercise price, term of the option, the expected exercise date based on prior years’experience, the share price
at grantdate, the expected price volatility ofthe underlying share, the expected dividend yield and therisk-free
interestrate;

o Entitlementto Shares - each option entitles the holder to one ordinary sharein JB Hi-Fi Limited;

e Sharelssues - holders ofoptions donothavetheright, under the options, to dividends or to participatein any
shareissue orinterestissue of JB Hi-Fi Limited or of any other body corporate or registered scheme;

¢ ChangeofControl-upon achangeofcontrolofthe Company all vested and unvested options will
automatically lapse unless the Board determines otherwise; and

¢ Other Conditions - other conditions apply including, amongstother things, treatmentofthe optionsin the event
of a capital reorganisation.
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On-market purchase of shares for purposes of Group incentive plans

During FY2023, 390,217 ordinaryshares in the Company were purchased on-market atan average price of $44.31
pershare in order to satisfy the entittements of executives and non-executive managementto securities under the
Group’s Variable Reward Plan and Employee Share Option Plan. Accordingly, there was no dilution of existing
shareholdings as a result of these entitlements.

Shares under option

Details ofinterests under optionatthe date ofthis Reportare set out below. 15,331 of the outstanding options are
vested and exercisable. All optionsentitlethe holder to ordinary shares in JB Hi-Fi Limited.

Weighted
Number Share Weighted Risk-free average
of shares price at Exercise average Dividend interest fair value
Option under Grant date GD price expected yield at rate at atGD®
series option (GD) $ Expiry date $ volatility? ~ GD GD $
168-170 7,247 20/08/2018 $26.21 19/08/2023 $0.00 27.4% 5.0% 2.2% $21.49
174-176 65,330 19/08/2019 $32.06 18/08/2024 $0.00 27.2% 4.5% 0.7% $26.05
177 2,386 17/08/2020 $49.60 16/08/2025 $0.00 36.2% 3.7% 0.4% $46.35
178 39,033 16/08/2020 $47.33 15/08/2025 $0.00 33.6% 3.7% 0.4% $44.66
179 38,834 14/08/2020 $47.33 13/08/2025 $0.00 31.8% 3.7% 0.4% $43.03
180-182 1,828 7/12/2020 $43.97 6/12/2025 $0.00 34.0% 4.1% 0.3% $39.86
183-185 131,758 17/08/2021 $50.51 16/08/2026 $0.00 34.3% 5.6% 0.6% $41.95
186-188 820 29/10/2021 $50.49 28/10/2026 $0.00 34.4% 5.5% 1.6% $42.71
189-191 1,760 3/11/2021 $50.30 2/11/2026 $0.00 34.4% 5.5% 1.3% $42.65
192-194 175,530 16/08/2022 $44.15 15/08/2027 $0.00 32.2% 6.9% 3.0% $35.81
195-197 3,421 5/12/2022 $45.26 4/12/2027 $0.00 32.6% 6.8% 3.1% $36.57
467,947

(i) The values shown are the weighted average for the relevant series listed.

The following tables include all share optionsgranted under the Group share option plans that were exercised
during the currentfinancial year and duringthe previous financial year. All shares are ordinary shares in JBHi-Fi
Limited and no amounts remain unpaid.

2023
Amount
Options Shares paid per Share price at
Option exercised received share exercise date)
Series Grant date No. No. $
167 29/08/2017 769 769 $0.00 $41.00to $43.82
169-170 20/08/2018 73,215 73,215 $0.00 $39.04 to $45.87
173 3/12/2018 2,532 2,532 $0.00 $45.53
174-176 19/08/2019 64,315 64,315 $0.00 $39.04 to $45.87
177 17/08/2020 40,971 40,971 $0.00 $39.04 to $45.87
178 16/08/2020 560 560 $0.00 $44.22
180 7/12/2020 290 290 $0.00 $42.28
183 17/08/2021 596 596 $0.00 $44.22
183,248 183,248
2022
Amount
Options Shares paid per Share price at
Option exercised received share exercise date”
Series Grant date No. No. $ $
142 2/05/2016 880 880 $0.00 $49.59
148 22/8/2016 41,083 41,083 $0.00 $47.35t0 $48.09
159 18/04/2017 53,156 53,156 $0.00 $49.59
162 1/05/2017 2,317 2,317 $0.00 $49.59
164-167 29/08/2017 167,384 167,384 $0.00 $44.90to $53.66
168-170 20/08/2018 80,708 80,708 $0.00 $44.90to0 $55.85
172 3/12/2018 2,532 2,532 $0.00 $53.66
174175 19/08/2019 69,273 69,273 $0.00 $44.90to $55.85
177 17/08/2020 894 894 $0.00 $47.89to0 $55.85

418,227 418,227

(i)  Where arange of prices are shown, options within the series were exercised on various dates throughout the period. The share prices shown
are the maximum and minimum share prices on the exercise dates for therelevant series.
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14 August 2023

The Board of Directors

JB Hi-Fi Limited

Podium Level, 60 City Road
Southbank VIC 3006

Dear Board Members

Auditor’s Independence Declaration — JB Hi-Fi Limited

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
ABN 74 450 121 060

477 Collins Street
Melbourne, VIC, 3000
Australia

Phone: +61 3 9671 7000
www.deloitte.com.au

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, | am pleased to provide the following declaration of

independence to the directors of JB Hi-Fi Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of JB Hi-Fi Limited for the year ended 30 June 2023, |

declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Yours sincerely

LA Trucho Tobmals

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Travis Simkin
Partner
Chartered Accountants

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation.
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477 Collins Street

Melbourne, VIC, 3000
Australia

Phone: +61 3 9671 7000
www.deloitte.com.au

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of JB Hi-Fi Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of JB Hi-Fi Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which
comprises the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in

equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

e  Giving atrue and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2023 and of its financial performance
for the year then ended; and

e Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial
report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the
directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial report for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation.
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Key Audit Matter

How the scope of our audit responded to the Key Audit Matter

Inventory existence and valuation
Refer to Note 8 Inventories

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying value of the Group’s inventories

was $1,040.9 million, representing 32% of the Group’s total assets.

Inventories are primarily held at 322 retail stores and 6 home
delivery centres in Australia and New Zealand.

As detailed in Note 8 of the financial report, inventories are
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a
weighted average basis. The cost of inventory represents its
purchase price, net of associated rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price of
inventories less estimated selling costs.

Provisions are recognised against the cost of inventory for items
where the net realisable value is estimated to be lower than cost.

There is judgement inherent in:

* identifying obsolete, discontinued and slow moving
inventory, taking into consideration the nature and condition
of the inventory and historical inventory turnover compared
to inventory on hand.

* the estimation of net realisable value, taking into account
recent sales history, expected future mark downs and
estimated selling costs.

Our audit procedures included the following:

* Understanding the Group’s processes and controls for inventory
costing, stocktakes and the measurement of inventory
provisions.

*  Evaluating the existence of inventory by:

- Attending stocktakes at a sample of store and home
delivery centre locations to observe the stocktake process
and the condition of inventory.

- Testing the recording of stocktake results to the general
ledger and testing inventory movements from count date to
year end.

*  Assessing the valuation of inventory by:

- Assessing the application of inventory costing
methodologies for compliance with Australian Accounting
Standards, including the recalculation of weighted average
cost, on a sample basis, with reference to supplier invoices
and associated supplier terms.

- Testing the accuracy and completeness of the report used
by the Group to identify obsolete, discontinued and slow
moving inventory.

- Examining and challenging the Group’s estimate of net
realisable value with reference to recent sales history,
expected future mark downs and estimated selling costs as
well as the Group’s allowance for shrinkage, with reference
to historical loss rates.

*  Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures included in Note 8 to
the financial statements.

Lease accounting
Refer to Note 16 of Right of use assets and lease liabilities

The Group holds right of use assets of $530.1 million and lease
liabilities of $605.3 million. These balances are significant in the
context of the Group’s balance sheet as at 30 June 2023.

In applying AASB 16 Leases, the Group is required to make a
number of judgments and estimates as disclosed in Note 16,
including:

*  Measuring the lease term (including judgements associated
with lease renewal options and the accounting for leases in
hold over).

. Determining an appropriate incremental borrowing rate to
be applied in the measurement of right of use assets and
lease liabilities upon initial recognition of a lease and for
certain lease modifications.

Our audit procedures included the following:

* Understanding management’s processes and key controls
related to the accounting for leases.

*  Testing on a sample basis, movements in the right of use assets
and lease liabilities and recalculating the interest and
depreciation recognised in profit or loss.

*  Evaluating the judgements applied by management, including
the probability of exercising renewal options.

* In conjunction with our treasury specialists, assessing the
incremental borrowing rates adopted by management, by
preparing an independent expectation of the incremental
borrowing rates.

*  Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures included in Note 16
to the financial statements.
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises:

e the Governance Statement, Directors’ Report, Operating and Financial Review and additional securities
exchange information, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and are included in the
Group’s Preliminary Final Report.

e the Chairman’s and Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report, which will be included in the Group’s annual
report, which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

The other information does not include the financial report or the Remuneration Report and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view

in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
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exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 32 to 49 of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 30
June 2023.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of JB Hi-Fi Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2023, complies with section
300A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Responsibilities

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

LAAE Tracke Tobmale

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Travis Simkin

Partner

Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, 14 August 2023
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Directors’ declaration

Directors’ declaration
The directors declare that:

(a) in the directors’opinion, there arereasonable grounds to believe thatthe Company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable;

(b) the attached financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as
stated in note 1 to the financial statements;

(c) in the directors’opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view ofthe
financial position and performance ofthe consolidated entity; and

(d) the directors have been given the declarationsrequired by s.295A ofthe Corporations Act 2001.

At the date of this declaration, the Company is within the class of companies affected by ASIC Corporations (Wholly-
owned Companies)Instrument2016/785. The nature ofthe deed of cross guarantee is such that each company which
is party to the deed guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in accordance with the deed of cross
guarantee.

In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the companies to which the
ASIC Class Order applies, as detailed in note 22 to the financial statements will, as a group, be able to meet any
obligations orliabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue of the deed ofcross guarantee.

Signed in accordance with aresolution ofthe directors made pursuantto s.295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf ofthe Directors

A

Stephen Goddard Terry Smart
Chairman Group Chief Executive Officer
14 August 2023

55



Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Sales and marketing expenses
Occupancy expenses
Administration expenses
Other expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic (cents per share)
Diluted (cents per share)

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Statement of profit or loss

Consolidated

2023 2022
Notes $m $m
5 9,626.4 9,232.0
(7,443.9) (7,151.6)
2,182.5 2,080.4
7.6 3.0
(978.3) (881.1)
(321.8) (302.8)
(46.0) (41.8)
(70.6) (62.3)
6 (26.3) (20.1)
7471 775.3
7 (222.5) (230.4)
524.6 544 .9
Cents Cents
3 479.90 479.46
3 477.91 477.45

The above statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JB Hi-Fi Limited
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m

Profit for the year 524.6 544.9
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.2 (0.5)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 0.2 (0.5)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Owners of the Company 524.8 544.4

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Deferred revenue
Provisions

Lease liabilities

Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred revenue
Provisions

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Retained earnings
Total equity

Notes

11

12
16
10

13
14
15
16

18

15
16

19
20

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JB Hi-Fi Limited
Balance sheet

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m

177.3 125.6
146.5 132.6
1,040.9 1,135.3
34.6 31.2
1,399.3 1,424.7
182.8 169.0
411 30.6
1,031.4 1,031.4
530.1 461.6
50.2 44 1
1,835.6 1,736.7
3,234.9 3,161.4
660.5 721.6
231.0 253.5
115.0 109.4
1741 167.0
4.3 54.8
1,184.9 1,306.3
49.8 59.4
106.9 94.7
42.5 42.7
431.2 378.0
630.4 574.8
1,815.3 1,881.1
1,419.6 1,280.3
329.3 346.8
25.4 22.8
1,064.9 910.7
1,419.6 1,280.3




Consolidated

Balance at 1 July 2021

Profit for the year
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations
Total comprehensive income for the year

Off-market share buy-back

Off-market share buy-back costs (net of tax)
Dividends paid

Acquisition of shares by employee share trust
Transfer of vested equity settled benefits (i)
Share-based payments - expense
Share-based payments - income tax
Balance at 30 June 2022

Balance at 1 July 2022

Profit for the year
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations
Total comprehensive income for the year

Off-market share buy-back costs (net of tax)
Dividends paid

Acquisition of shares by employee share trust
Transfer of vested equity settled benefits (i)
Share-based payments - expense
Share-based payments - income tax
Balance at 30 June 2023

JB Hi-Fi Limited

Statement of changes in equity

Equity- Foreign
settled currency Common
Contributed benefits translation Hedging control Retained Total
equity reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings equity
Notes $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

393.0 84.5 4.6 0.8 (6.1) 831.6 1,308.4

- - - - - 544.9 544.9

- - (0.5) - - - (0.5)

- - (0.5) - - 5449  544.4
19 (17.6) - - - - (232.4) (250.0)
19 (0.4) - - - - - (0.4)
4 - - - - - (310.2)  (310.2)
19 (28.2) - - - - - (28.2)
- (76.8) - - - 76.8 -

6 - 12.8 - - - - 12.8
7 - 3.5 - - - - 3.5
346.8 24.0 41 0.8 (6.1) 910.7 1,280.3

346.8 24.0 41 0.8 (6.1) 910.7 1,280.3

- - - - - 524.6 524.6

- - 0.2 - - - 0.2

- - 0.2 - - 524.6 524.8

19 (0.2) - - - - - (0.2)
4 - - - - - (382.7) (382.7)
19 (17.3) - - - - - (17.3)
- (12.3) - - - 12.3 -

6 - 13.8 - - - - 13.8
7 - 0.9 - - - - 0.9
329.3 26.4 4.3 0.8 (6.1) 1,064.9 1,419.6

(i) Upon vesting of equity-settled benefits, the expense recognised in the equity-settled benefits reserve is transferred to retained earnings. Refer to note 27 for further details on share-based payments.

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Interest and other finance costs paid on borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities

Income taxes paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Off-market share buy-back

Off-market share buy-back costs

Payments for shares acquired by the employee share trust
Net (repayment)/proceeds from borrowings

Payments for debt issue costs

Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Statement of cash flows

Consolidated

2023 2022
Notes $m $m

10,602.0 10,194.5

(9,581.9) (9.283.5)

4.4 0.8

(3.7) (1.3)

16 (21.9) (18.7)
(282.5) (264.4)

17 716.4 627.4
11 (72.0) (57.6)
0.3 0.2

(71.7) (57.4)
19 . (250.0)
19 (0.3) (0.6)
19 (17.3) (28.2)
18 (10.0) 60.0
18 ] (0.6)
4 (382.7) (310.2)
16 (182.8) (177.6)
(593.1) (707.2)
51.6 (137.2)

125.6 263.2
0.1 (0.4)

177.3 125.6

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

1 About this report

These are the consolidated financial statements of JB Hi-Fi Limited (Company or parent entity) and its controlled entities.
JB Hi-Fi Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in this financial report as the Group. For the purposes
of preparing the consolidated financial statements the Company is a for-profit entity.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001.

(i) Compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of JB Hi-Fi Limited comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

(ii) Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
(iii) Corporate information

JB Hi-Fi Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and
principal place of business is Podium Level, 60 City Road, Southbank, Victoria.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 14 August 2023.
(b) Rounding off of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors' Reports) Instrument
2016/191, dated 24 March 2016, and in accordance with that Corporations Instrument, amounts in the financial report
are rounded off to the nearest hundred thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

(c) Sections

The notes in these financial statements have been organised into the following sections to help users find and
understand the information they need to know:

() Group Performance: focuses on the results and performance of the Group;

(i) Operating Assets and Liabilities: provides information on the assets and liabilities used to generate the Group's
performance;

(iii) Capital Structure and Risk Management: outlines how the Group manages its capital and various financial risks;

(iv) Group Structure: explains aspects of the group structure and how any changes have affected the financial position
and performance of the Group; and

(v) Other Disclosures: provides information on items which require disclosure to comply with Australian Accounting
Standards and other regulatory pronouncements.

(d) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgements used in the preparation of these financial statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

Areas of judgement and estimate Note
Inventory net realisable value 8
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 12
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 16

62



JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Group Performance

2 Segment information
(a) Description of segments

Management has determined the Group's operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Group Chief
Executive Officer that are used to make strategic and operating decisions.

The Group Chief Executive Officer considers the business primarily from a brand and geographic perspective. On this
basis, management has identified three reportable segments, JB Hi-Fi Australia (JB Aust), JB Hi-Fi New Zealand (JB NZ)
and The Good Guys (TGG). The Group Chief Executive Officer monitors the performance of these three segments
separately. The Group does not operate any other brand or in any other geographic segment.

(b) Segment information provided to the Group Chief Executive Officer

The segment information provided to the Group Chief Executive Officer for the reportable segments for the year ended
30 June 2023 is as follows:

JB Aust JB NZ (i) TGG Eliminations Total
2023 $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue from external customers 6,546.1 267.4 2,813.0 - 9,626.4
EBITDA 690.9 49 297.4 - 993.2
Depreciation and impairment (139.0) (0.8) (84.4) - (224.2)
EBIT 551.9 4.1 213.0 - 769.0
Interest on leases (13.4) (0.4) (8.1) - (21.9)
Interest revenue 4.4
Other finance costs (4.4)
Profit before income tax 538.5 3.7 204.9 - 747 1
Other segment information
Segment Assets 1,640.6 68.1 1,993.9 (467.7) 3,234.9
Segment Liabilities 1,601.6 45.3 636.1 (467.7) 1,815.3

JB Aust JB NZ (i) TGG Eliminations Total
2022 $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue from external customers 6,196.5 246.1 2,789.4 - 9,232.0
EBITDA 681.4 11.4 321.1 - 1,013.9
Depreciation and impairment (136.5) (3.1) (79.7) - (219.3)
EBIT 544.9 8.3 241.4 - 794.6
Interest on leases (10.9) (0.4) (7.4) - (18.7)
Interest revenue 0.8
Other finance costs (1.4)
Profit before income tax 534.0 79 234.0 - 775.3
Other segment information
Segment Assets 1,574.4 51.2 1,879.3 (343.5) 3,161.4
Segment Liabilities 1,526.8 334 664.4 (343.5) 1,881.1

(i) There were no non-cash impairments recorded in the JB Hi-Fi New Zealand 2023 financial result (2022: $3.1 million),
however there was reduced depreciation due to prior year asset impairments of $6.2 million (2022: $7.0 million). The
benefit in JB Hi-Fi New Zealand 2023 EBIT from the impairments was therefore $6.2 million (2022: $3.9 million).

EBIT and EBITDA

The Group Chief Executive Officer assesses the performance of the Group’s operating segments based on EBIT and
EBITDA. EBIT excludes the effects of interest revenue, finance costs and income tax. EBITDA further excludes
depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges.
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3 Earnings per share

Basic (cents per share)
Diluted (cents per share)

(a) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Diluted earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

(b) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating

basic earnings per share

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Options

Weighted average number of ordinary and potential ordinary shares used as the

denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share

(c) Information concerning the classification of securities

Options

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Consolidated

2023 2022

Cents Cents
479.90 479.46
477.91 477 .45

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
524.6 544.9
524.6 544.9

Consolidated

2023 2022
No. m No. m
109.3 113.7
0.5 0.5
109.8 114.2

Options granted under the Company's share option plans are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have been
included in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive (454,152 options are
considered dilutive (2022: 477,604), zero are considered anti-dilutive (2022: zero)). The options have not been included
in the determination of basic earnings per share. Details relating to the options are set out in note 27.
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4 Dividends
2023 2022
Cents per Cents per
share $m share $m
Recognised amounts
Final dividend - previous financial year 153.00 167.3 107.00 122.9
Interim dividend - current financial year 197.00 2154 163.00 187.3
350.00 382.7 270.00 310.2
2023 2022
Cents per Cents per
share $m share $m
Unrecognised amounts
Final dividend - current financial year 115.00 125.7 153.00 167.3

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of
115 cents per share. The record date is 25 August 2023.

All dividends declared and subsequently paid by the Company are franked to 100% at the 30% corporate income tax
rate.

(a) Franking account balance
Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Franking credits available for subsequent reporting periods based on a tax rate of 30.0%
517.6 450.9

(2022 - 30.0%)

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for
franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax.

The impact on the franking account of the dividend recommended by the directors since year end, but not recognised as
a liability at year end, will be a reduction in the franking account of $53.9 million (2022: $71.7 million).

5 Revenue
2023 2022
$m $m
Sale of goods and services - Stores and other channels 8,315.9 7,606.8
Sale of goods and services - Online 1,310.5 1,625.2
9,626.4 9,232.0

Total Revenue
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5 Revenue (continued)
(a) Revenue recognition

The Group generates revenue from the sale of products and services, both as a principal and as an agent, to retail and
commercial customers. Revenue is recognised in accordance with the principles set out below, in an amount that reflects
the consideration expected to be received in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue excludes goods and
services tax and is recognised net of discounts and sales returns.

Where payment for the goods or services is received in advance, the amount is recognised as deferred revenue in the
balance sheet until the goods or services have been delivered to, or collected by, the customer.

Gift cards are considered a prepayment for goods or services to be delivered in the future. The Group recognises
deferred revenue in the balance sheet relating to the gift cards and recognises revenue when the customer redeems the
gift card and the Group fulfils the performance obligation related to the transaction. Revenue is also recognised where
the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the customer is deemed remote.

(i) Product revenue

The Group generates product revenue from the sale of consumer electronics and home appliances.

Product revenue is recognised on a "point in time" basis when control of the goods transfers to the customer. Control of
the goods transfers to the customer either at the point of sale or when the goods are delivered to, or collected by, the
customer. Any fees charged to the customer for delivery are recognised as revenue when the delivery has been
completed.

In most cases, the Group is the principal in product revenue transactions, recognising revenue on a gross basis. For
certain transactions, the Group acts as a sales agent and recognises commission, which represents the consideration
received from the customer net of amounts payable to third parties responsible for fulfilling the performance obligation for
the customer. The Group typically recognises commission arising from such transactions when the goods are delivered
to the customer by the third party.

(i) Services revenue

The Group generates revenue from installation, IT services, extended care and customer support services.

The Group recognises revenue for services, such as installation and IT services once the service is completed, as this is
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and obtain benefits from the service.

For extended care and customer support services where the Group is the principal, revenue is recognised on an "over
time basis" from the date the service commences until the date the service is completed. Such contracts typically contain
multiple performance obligations with service terms ranging up to 7 years. The Group recognises revenue for these
services on a usage basis, an input method of measuring progress over the related contract term, which is generally time
based.

For extended care and customer support services where the Group acts as an agent, the Group recognises commission,
which represents the consideration received from the customer net of amounts payable to third parties responsible for
fulfilling the performance obligation for the customer. The Group typically recognises commission arising from such
transactions at the point of sale to the customer, which is when the Group completes arranging the sale on behalf of the
third party.

The Group generated 0.4% of its total revenue on an over time basis in the current year (2022: 0.4%).
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6 Expenses

Profit before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Finance costs
Interest and other finance costs on borrowings
Interest on leases
Other interest expense

Employee benefits expenses
Share-based payments - expense
Defined contribution superannuation expense
Other employee benefits

Depreciation and impairment
Depreciation - Plant and equipment
Impairment - Plant and equipment
Depreciation - Right-of-use assets
Impairment - Right-of-use assets

7 Taxation

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30.0% (2022: 30.0%)

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions

Effect of other deductibles in determining taxable profit

Unrecognised New Zealand tax losses and timing differences

Tax expense
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Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
4.0 1.3
21.9 18.7
0.4 0.1
26.3 20.1
13.8 12.8
79.4 68.8
828.9 751.0
922.1 832.6
53.3 52.0
1.9 1.8
169.0 162.8
- 2.7
224.2 219.3

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
233.0 230.7
(10.5) (0.3)
222.5 230.4

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m

747.1 775.3
2241 232.6
4.4 41

(0.1) (0.2)

(4.2) (4.9)

(1.7) (1.2)
222.5 230.4




7 Taxation (continued)

(c) Amounts recognised directly in equity

The following current and deferred amounts were charged directly to equity during the period:

Current tax

Tax effect of employee share options in reserves

Deferred tax

Tax effect of share buy-back costs charged to issued capital

(d) Deferred tax

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax assets
Provisions
Inventories

Deferred revenue
Plant and equipment
Lease liabilities
Other

Deferred tax liabilities
Brand names
Prepayments
Right-of-use asset

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

JB Hi-Fi Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Consolidated
2023 2022
$m $m

0.9 3.5

0.1 0.2

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m

41.3 40.3

9.7 10.3

451 404
21.3 13.8
174.6 159.9
9.1 8.1
301.1 272.8
(85.2) (85.2)
(20.6) (18.5)
(154.2) (138.5)
(260.0) (242.2)
411 30.6

All movements in the above temporary differences have been charged to income, with the exception of the share

buy-back costs charged to issued capital as noted above.

(e) Recognition and measurement

Current tax

Current tax represents the amount expected to be paid to taxation authorities on taxable income for the period, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or

refundable).
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7 Taxation (continued)
(e) Recognition and measurement (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities under financial reporting and taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at
the rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or asset realised, based on tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit or in relation to the initial recognition of goodwill.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised directly in equity.

(f) Tax consolidation legislation

The Company and its wholly owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax consolidated group and are therefore
taxed as a single entity. The head entity within the tax consolidated group is JB Hi-Fi Limited. The members of the tax
consolidated group are identified at note 22.

Tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of the members
of the tax consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax consolidated
group using the ‘separate taxpayer within group’ approach by reference to the carrying amounts in the separate financial
statements of each entity and the tax values applying under tax consolidation. Current tax liabilities and assets and
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and relevant tax credits of the members of the tax consolidated group
are recognised by the Company (as head entity in the tax consolidated group).

Where the tax contribution amount recognised by each member of the tax consolidated group for a particular period is
different to the aggregate of the current tax liability or asset and any deferred tax asset arising from unused tax losses
and tax credits in respect of that period, the difference is recognised as a contribution from (or distribution to) equity
participants.

(g) Nature of tax funding and tax sharing agreements

Entities within the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding arrangement and a tax sharing agreement with
the head entity. Under the terms of the tax funding arrangement, JB Hi-Fi Limited and each of the entities in the tax
consolidated group have agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment to or from the head entity, based on the current tax
liability or current tax asset of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts receivable from or payable to other
entities in the tax consolidated group.

The tax sharing agreement entered into between members of the tax consolidated group provides for the determination
of the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations
or if an entity should leave the tax consolidated group. The effect of the tax sharing agreement is that each member's
liability for tax payable by the tax consolidated group is limited to the amount payable to the head entity under the tax
funding agreement.

JB Hi-Fi calculates deferred taxes in relation to investments within the tax consolidated group using the ‘change in tax
status’ view. This view results in no deferred tax being recognised until such time as an entity leaves the tax consolidated

group.
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Operating Assets and Liabilities

8 Inventories

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Finished goods 1,040.9 1,135.3

(a) Recognition and measurement

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated on a weighted average basis,
comprising the purchase price, less supplier rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Inventory provisions are recognised
where the net realisable value of inventory is estimated to be lower than its carrying value as well as to allow for
estimated inventory losses associated with shrinkage.

When determining the net realisable value of inventories (which is most applicable to obsolete, end of life and slow
moving inventory), the Group uses its judgement to determine the expected selling price and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These assumptions are reviewed at least annually.

9 Trade and other receivables

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Trade receivables 62.4 68.3
Allowance for expected credit losses (1.6) (1.8)
60.8 66.5
Other receivables 85.7 66.1
146.5 132.6

(a) Terms and conditions

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables relate to amounts due from commercial customers. Other receivables primarily relate to supplier
rebates that are expected to be received on a gross basis from suppliers. Supplier rebates which are net settled are
presented on a net basis with the related trade payables balance (note 13).

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at their transaction price and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for expected credit losses. The average credit
period for trade and other receivables is 30 days. There are no material trade and other receivables past due.

Allowance for expected credit losses
The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with its trade and other receivables on a forward-looking
basis. The Group applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which requires expected lifetime

losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Credit insurance is carried for most amounts due from
commercial customers. Individual debts which are known to be uncollectable are written off when identified.
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10 Other assets

Current
Prepayments
Other

Non-current
Prepayments

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
34.6 30.3
- 0.9
34.6 31.2
50.2 44 1
50.2 44 1

Prepayments includes premiums in relation to extended warranty component of The Goods Guys Gold Service Extras
program and general prepaid expenses. Gold Services Extra is an extended care program operated by The Good Guys,
which encompasses a range of features including extended warranty. The prepaid premiums are amortised to profit or
loss over time, concurrent with the recognition of revenue from the extended warranty service.

11 Plant and equipment

At 1 July 2021

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Impairment charge

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2022

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2023
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Impairment charge

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2023

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book amount

Plant and Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
$m $m $m

4311 2371 668.2
(325.4) (173.8) (499.2)
105.7 63.3 169.0
105.7 63.3 169.0
31.2 26.4 57.6
(3.3) (0.5) (3.8)
(27.8) (24.2) (52.0)
(1.1) (0.7) (1.8)
104.7 64.3 169.0
414.8 2457 660.5
(310.1) (181.4) (491.5)
104.7 64.3 169.0
104.7 64.3 169.0
38.0 34.0 72.0
(1.9) (1.1) (3.0)
(27.2) (26.1) (53.3)
(1.6) (0.3) (1.9)
112.0 70.8 182.8
355.8 266.7 622.5
(243.8) (195.9) (439.7)
112.0 70.8 182.8
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11 Plant and equipment (continued)
(a) Recognition and measurement

Plant and equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Depreciation is provided on plant and equipment and leasehold improvements. Depreciation is calculated on a straight
line basis so as to write off the net cost of each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period
taking into consideration physical, economic and environmental factors, which includes, but is not limited to, asset
condition, expected use, wear-and-tear, technology changes, and climate-related risks. The effect of any changes are
recognised on a prospective basis.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:
- Leasehold improvements 1to 15 years
- Plant and equipment 1.5to 15 years

Plant and equipment and leasehold improvements are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is
recognised in other expenses in the profit or loss.

12 Intangible assets

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Goodwill 747.0 747.0
Brand names 284.4 284 .4
1,031.4 1,031.4

(a) Recognition and measurement

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or business at the date of the acquisition.

Goodwill is not amortised. Instead, it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Any impairment is recognised as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) expected to benefit from the synergies of the related business combination. Cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (higher of its value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset.

72



JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

12 Intangible assets (continued)
(a) Recognition and measurement (continued)

Further details regarding the allocation of goodwill to cash generating units and the Group’s impairment testing results for
the year ended 30 June 2023, including an overview of key assumptions, is set out below.

Brand names

Brand names that are acquired as part of a business combination are recognised separately from goodwill. These assets
are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition using the relief from royalty method. Brand names are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Brand names have indefinite useful lives and therefore do not attract amortisation. As at 30 June 2023, management has
concluded that an indefinite useful life remains appropriate as the Group expect to continue using the brand names for
the foreseeable future and there are no legal, technical or commercial factors indicating that the brand names have a
limited life.

For the purpose of impairment testing, brand names with indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that a brand name may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount
(higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal). None of the Group’s brand names have incurred an
impairment in previous periods.

(b) Impairment testing

The carrying amount of goodwill and brand names is allocated to the following cash-generating units or groups of CGUs
(CGUs) for impairment testing purposes:

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Goodwill
The Good Guys 575.6 575.6
JB Hi-Fi Australia 171.4 171.4
747.0 747.0
Brand names
The Good Guys 241.3 241.3
JB Hi-Fi Australia 43.1 43.1
284.4 284.4

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based on value in use calculations.

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations include the FY2024 financial budget, sales growth, gross
margin, cost of doing business (CODB) and the discount rate. These assumptions are based on past experience and the
Company’s forecast operating and financial performance for each CGU taking into account current market and economic
conditions, risks, uncertainties and opportunities for improvement for each CGU.

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections over a 5 year period, extrapolated into perpetuity using a
long-term growth rate. The cash flows projections in Year 1 are based on financial budgets for the 2024 financial year, as
approved by the Board. The cash flow projections thereafter and into perpetuity assume a steady growth rate of 2.5%
(2022: 2.5%), which is consistent with the mid-point of long-term inflation forecasts by recognised bodies.

A post-tax discount rate of 9.5% (2022: 9.0%) has been used for all CGUs.
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12 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Impairment testing (continued)

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis taking into consideration the current uncertain macro-economic conditions,
which indicated that no reasonably possible change in key assumptions would result in an impairment loss. Accordingly,
the Group has concluded that no impairment is required based on current market and economic conditions and expected
future performance.

13 Trade and other payables

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Trade payables 581.6 660.6
Goods and services tax (GST) payable 48.5 38.6
Other creditors and accruals 30.4 22.4
660.5 721.6

Trade payables and other creditors and accruals represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior
to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually settled within 45 days of recognition. Supplier rebates that are expected to be settled on a net
basis are presented on a net basis with the related trade payables balance.

14 Deferred revenue

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m

Current
Deferred revenue 231.0 253.5

231.0 253.5
Non-current
Deferred revenue 106.9 94.7

106.9 94.7

Deferred revenue relates to unfulfilled services to be performed under The Good Guys Gold Service Extras program,
unredeemed gift cards and customer deposits. Gold Services Extra is an extended care program operated by The Good
Guys, which encompasses a range of features including extended warranty. Refer to note 5(a) for the Group's revenue
recognition accounting policy.

It is expected that 74% (2022: 74%) of Non-Current Deferred Revenue will be recognised in the next 3 financial years
and the remaining 26% (2022: 26%) recognised in the following 3 years.
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15 Provisions

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Current
Employee benefits 113.5 107.9
Lease make good provision 1.5 1.5
115.0 109.4
Non-current
Employee benefits 8.7 9.2
Lease make good provision 33.8 33.5
42.5 42.7

(a) Recognition and measurement

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows.

(i) Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, are recognised in respect of employees' services up
to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liability for annual leave and unpaid bonuses are recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other
short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees, up to the end of the
reporting period. Expected future payments are discounted using the Australian corporate bond discount rate curve as
published by Milliman with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.

Management judgement is applied in determining the following key assumptions used in the calculation of long service
leave at balance date:

« future increases in wages and salaries;

e future on cost rates; and

» experience of employee departures and period of service.

(i) Lease make good provision

The lease make good provision includes the Group’s best estimate of the amount required to return the Group’s leased
premises to their original condition at the end of the lease term in accordance with the terms of the lease.
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The Group leases various properties including retail stores, warehouses and offices and equipment in Australia and New
Zealand. Lease agreements are typically entered into for fixed periods ranging from 1 to 10 years, have varying terms
and commonly include extension options and annual increase clauses. Certain store leases contain variable lease

payment terms that are linked to store sales.

Retail store leases can enter ‘hold-over’ from time to time, where the Group continues to occupy and use a property on a
rolling basis beyond the contractual lease term. This typically occurs when a lease renewal process extends beyond the
expiry of the lease, with both the Group and lessor having an economic incentive for the lease arrangement to continue
in expectation of reaching an agreement on renewal terms. Refer to note 16(e) for the Group’s key judgements in

accounting for leases in hold-over.

The carrying value of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities is presented below:

(a) Right-of-use assets

At 1 July 2021

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Carrying value

Year ended 30 June 2022

Opening carrying value

Additions, modifications and other reassessments of leases
Depreciation

Impairment charge

Closing carrying value

At 30 June 2022

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Closing carrying value

Year ended 30 June 2023

Opening carrying value

Additions, modifications and other reassessments of leases
Depreciation

Closing carrying value

At 30 June 2023

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Closing carrying value
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Properties Equipment Total
$m $m $m

869.0 10.9 879.9
(339.8) (3.8) (343.6)
529.2 71 536.3
529.2 71 536.3
89.3 1.5 90.8
(160.4) (2.4) (162.8)
(2.7) - (2.7)
455.4 6.2 461.6
957.4 12.4 969.8
(502.0) (6.2) (508.2)
455.4 6.2 461.6
455.4 6.2 461.6
234.2 3.3 237.5
(165.9) (3.1) (169.0)
523.7 6.4 530.1
1,192.4 15.7 1,208.1
(668.7) (9.3) (678.0)
523.7 6.4 530.1




16 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Year ended 30 June 2022

Opening carrying value

New and modified leases

Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of interest on lease liabilities
Interest expense

Foreign exchange translation

Closing carrying value

At 30 June 2022
Current
Non-Current
Total

Year ended 30 June 2023

Opening carrying value

New and modified leases

Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of interest on lease liabilities
Interest expense

Foreign exchange translation

Closing carrying value

At 30 June 2023
Current
Non-Current
Total

(c) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
Impairment expense on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Property lease expense (i)

JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Properties Equipment Total

$m $m $m
624.1 7.2 631.3
90.0 1.6 91.6
(175.2) (2.4) (177.6)
(18.5) (0.2) (18.7)
18.5 0.2 18.7
(0.3) - (0.3)
538.6 6.4 545.0
164.6 2.4 167.0
374.0 4.0 378.0
538.6 6.4 545.0

Properties Equipment Total

$m $m $m
538.6 6.4 545.0
239.5 3.4 242.9
(179.7) (3.1) (182.8)
(21.7) (0.2) (21.9)
21.7 0.2 21.9
0.2 - 0.2
598.6 6.7 605.3
171.1 3.0 174.1
427.5 3.7 431.2
598.6 6.7 605.3

2023 2022

$m $m
169.0 162.8
- 2.7
21.9 18.7
14.0 9.4

(i) The property lease expense includes short-term, low value and variable rent expenses which are included within

occupancy expenses.

(d) Recognition and measurement

A right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability are recognised at commencement of the lease.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit in the
lease, or if that cannot be readily determined, at the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate used during the year was 4.55% (2022: 3.27%) which was influenced by the timing of new

and modified leases.

Each lease payment is allocated between the lease liability and finance costs. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the period of the lease to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability

for each period.
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16 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
(d) Recognition and measurement (continued)

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease liabilities
are remeasured, with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset, when there is a change in future lease
payments resulting from a rent review, change in an index or rate such as inflation, or change in the Group’s assessment
of whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

AASB 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated
non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has applied this practical expedient.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, comprising: the initial lease liability; any lease payments already
made less any lease incentives received; initial direct costs; and any make good costs. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying
asset. The right-of-use asset is tested for impairment if there are any indicators of impairment.

Leases of low value assets and short-term leases of 12 months or less are expensed to profit or loss on a straight line
basis. Low value assets primarily comprise office equipment such as printers and photocopiers.

(e) Key judgements

Lease term

The lease term is determined at lease commencement or at the effective date of a lease modification. The lease term
represents the non-cancellable term, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised.

Extension options are a common feature within the Group’s property leases, providing the Group with operational
flexibility should a property perform below expectations, a relocation opportunity arises or the economic outlook
adversely changes. Hence, at lease commencement, extension options are not typically considered reasonably certain
to be exercised, unless there is a clear economic incentive for extension.

Extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group does not have any options
to purchase leased assets.

After lease commencement, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not exercise) an extension option.

In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to extend or renew a lease in hold-over, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to remain in the leased premises and
whether a right-of-use asset and lease liability should be recognised, or whether the lease should be accounted for as a
short-term lease. When an economic incentive exists, the Group estimates the expected lease term, lease liability and
related right-of-use asset based on information available at the date the lease enters hold-over. When a new lease
agreement is subsequently entered into, the Group accounts for any change in terms in accordance with the principles
that apply to lease modifications.
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17 Notes to the cash flow statement

JB Hi-Fi Limited

Notes to the financial statements

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts and trade finance facilities used.

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is reconciled as follows:

Cash
Bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents

(b) Reconciliation of net cash inflow from operating activities to profit

Profit for the year

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment charges

Share-based payments - expense

Share-based payments - income tax

Net loss on disposal of non-current assets

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in current receivables
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
(Increase) decrease in deferred tax assets
(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets
(Decrease) increase in current provisions
(Decrease) increase in current payables
(Decrease) increase in current deferred revenue
(Decrease) increase in non-current provisions

(Decrease) increase in non-current deferred revenue

(Decrease) increase in current tax liabilities
Net cash inflow from operating activities
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Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
177.3 125.6
177.3 125.6

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m

524.6 544 .9
222.3 214.8
1.9 4.5

13.8 12.8

0.9 3.5

2.7 3.6
95.9 (197.7)
(14.3) (29.3)
(3.5) 4.4
(10.5) (0.3)
(6.1) (5.1)

5.6 4.2
(55.9) 53.8
(22.5) 40.6
(0.2) 0.1
12.2 9.8
(50.5) (37.2)
716.4 627.4
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18 Borrowings

Consolidated
2023 2022
$m $m

Unsecured non-current
Bank loans 49.8 59.4

Consolidated

2023 2022

$m $m
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Opening borrowings 59.4 -
Net (repayment)/drawdown of borrowings (10.0) 60.0
Debt issue costs paid - (0.6)
Amortisation of debt issue costs 0.4 -

49.8 59.4

The Group's trade finance facility of $200.0 million, term debt facilities of $200.0 million and bank overdraft facilities of
$20.0 million and NZ$10.0 million (total $29.2 million) remain unchanged from 30 June 2022. The Group has total
borrowing facilities of $429.2 million of which $379.2 million are unused at 30 June 2023 in addition to cash on hand of
$177.3 million. Refer to note 21(a) for further details on the Group's financing facilities.

(a) Recognition and measurement

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, and intends to do so.

The Group monitors compliance with its financial covenants on a monthly basis and reports compliance on a
semi-annual basis to the banks. The Group has complied with all such requirements during the current and previous
year.

19 Contributed equity
(a) Share capital

Parent entity Parent entity
2023 2022 2023 2022
Shares Shares $m $m
Ordinary shares - fully paid 109,333,981 109,333,981 329.3 346.8

Ordinary shares issued are classified as equity and are fully paid, have no par value and carry one vote per share and
the right to dividends. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

If the entity reacquires its own equity instruments, for example, as the result of a share buy-back, those instruments are
deducted from equity and the associated shares are cancelled. No gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss and the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is recognised directly in
equity.
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19 Contributed equity (continued)

(b) Movements in ordinary share capital

Number of
Date Details shares $m
1 July 2021 Opening balance 114,883,372 393.0

Unallocated shares held by employee share trust (1,665) -
Balance excluding shares held by employee share 114,881,707 393.0
trust
Off-market share buy-back (5,549,391) (17.6)
Off-market share buy-back costs (net of tax) - (0.4)
Shares acquired by employee share trust (567,645) (28.2)
Allocation of shares under share option and variable
reward plan 561,983 -
Balance excluding shares held by employee share 109,326,654 346.8
trust
Unallocated shares held by employee share trust 7,327 -

30 June 2022  Closing balance 109,333,981 346.8

1 July 2022  Opening balance 109,333,981 346.8

Unallocated shares held by employee share trust (7,327) -
Balance excluding shares held by employee share 109,326,654 346.8
trust
Off-market share buy-back costs (net of tax) - (0.2)
Shares acquired by employee share trust (390,217) (17.3)
Allocation of shares under share option and variable
reward plan 381,516 -
Balance excluding shares held by employee share 109,317,953 329.3
trust
Unallocated shares held by employee share trust 16,028 -

30 June 2023  Closing balance 109,333,981 329.3

(c) Share options

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's share option plans, as at 30 June 2023, executives and
non-executive management have options over 470,442 ordinary shares (of which 16,029 were vested), in aggregate,
with various expiry dates. Refer to note 27 for further details on the Group's share option plans.

As at 30 June 2022, executives and non-executive management had options over 497,981 ordinary shares (of which
10,177 were vested), in aggregate, with various expiry dates.

Share options granted under the Company's share option plans carry no rights to dividends and no voting rights.
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19 Contributed equity (continued)
(d) Capital management

The Board reviews the capital structure on an ongoing basis. The Group’s objective is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which seeks to reduce the cost of capital and to ensure the Group has access to adequate capital to sustain the
future development of the business.

As part of its capital management program, the Group monitors the return on invested capital and the gearing ratio. The
Group defines return on invested capital as earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) divided by the sum of total equity
plus net debt and the gearing ratio as term debt excluding capitalised borrowing costs, divided by earnings before

interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and impairment (EBITDA).

The Board has adopted a policy of monitoring the dividend payout ratio and targeting a payout ratio of 65% of net profit
after tax as it seeks to strike a balance between shareholder returns and ensuring adequate capital is retained for the
growth of the business so as to maximise long-term shareholder returns.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

The Group’s return on invested capital and gearing ratios as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 were as follows:

Consolidated

2023 2022

$m $m
Return on invested capital
Profit before tax 7471 775.3
Net finance costs 21.9 19.3
EBIT 769.0 794.6
Borrowings 49.8 59.4
Cash and cash equivalents (177.3) (125.6)
Net cash (127.5) (66.2)
Total equity 1,419.6 1,280.3
Invested capital 1,292.1 1,214 1
Return on invested capital 59.5% 65.4%
Gearing ratio
Term debt 50.0 60.0
EBIT 769.0 794.6
Depreciation and impairment 224.2 219.3
EBITDA 993.2 1,013.9
Gearing ratio 0.05 0.06

20 Reserves

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Equity-settled benefits 26.4 24.0
Common control reserve (6.1) (6.1)
Hedging reserves 0.8 0.8
Foreign currency translation reserve 4.3 4.1
254 22.8
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20 Reserves (continued)
(a) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Equity-settled benefits

The equity-settled benefits reserve arises as the share options and restricted shares granted to executives and
non-executive management under the Company's share option plans and variable reward plan are expensed. Further
information about share-based payments is in note 27 to the financial statements.

(i)  Common control reserve

The common control reserve represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the balance of a non-controlling
interest at the date a change in ownership of a subsidiary occurs.

(iii) Hedging reserves

Hedging reserves include gains and losses recognised on the effective portion of foreign currency loans in previous
periods designated as net investment hedges. The gains and losses deferred due to the net investment hedge are
recognised in the profit or loss when the foreign operation is disposed.

(iv) Foreign currency translation

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the Group's foreign controlled entities from their functional currencies
into Australian dollars are brought to account directly to the foreign currency translation reserve, as described in note
29(a).

21 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (foreign currency and interest rate
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks, by using various financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by
the Board of directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives.

The Group holds the following financial assets and liabilities at reporting date:

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 177.3 125.6
Trade and other receivables 146.5 132.6
323.8 258.2
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 660.5 721.6
Bank loans 49.8 59.4
Lease liabilities 605.3 545.0
1,315.6 1,326.0

(a) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of directors, who assess the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows.
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21 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Liquidity risk (continued)

Financing arrangements

The Group had access to the following borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Consolidated

2023 2022
$m $m
Unsecured bank overdraft facility (renewable annually):
amount used - -
amount unused 29.2 29.0
29.2 29.0
Unsecured trade finance facility (renewable annually):
amount used - -
amount unused 200.0 200.0
200.0 200.0
Unsecured indemnity guarantees:
amount used 24 3.0
amount unused 3.9 3.3
6.3 6.3
Unsecured bank loan facilities (term debt expiring February 2025):
amount used 50.0 60.0
amount unused 150.0 140.0
200.0 200.0
Headroom in total borrowing facilities (excluding security indemnity guarantees) 379.2 369.0

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both principal and estimated interest cash flows.

The weighted average interest rate disclosed for lease liabilities represents the incremental borrowing rates over the
lease term at the time the leases were entered into or modified. The weighted average interest rate disclosed for bank
loans represents the interest rates that applied during the financial year to bank loans and does not represent the interest
rates that may apply in the future.

Cash flows for financial liabilities without fixed amount or timing are based on the conditions existing at the reporting
date.

Lessthan 6-12 Between Between Over5 Total Weighted

6 months months 1and2 2and5 years average
years years effective
interest
rate
2023 $m $m $m $m $m $m %
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 660.5 - - - - 660.5 -%
Lease liabilities 102.4 97.2 166.3 282.8 37.8 686.5 4.55%
Bank loans 1.0 1.0 51.4 - - 53.4 4.20%
763.9 98.2 217.7 282.8 37.8 1,400.4
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21 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Liquidity risk (continued)
Lessthan 6-12 Between Between Over5 Total Weighted

6 months months 1and2 2and5 years average
years years effective
interest
rate
2022 $m $m $m $m $m $m %
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 721.6 - - - - 721.6 -%
Lease liabilities 96.0 84.6 145.4 227.5 28.2 581.7 3.27%
Bank loans 0.4 0.4 0.8 60.6 - 62.2 1.41%
818.0 85.0 146.2 288.1 28.2 1,365.5

(b) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the

Group. The Group has endeavoured to minimise its credit risk by dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Group's
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowance for impairment,
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates. The risk has historically been
managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings through the use of
interest rate swap and cap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and
defined risk appetite, ensuring optimal hedging strategies are applied, by either positioning the balance sheet or
protecting interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has no interest rate swaps or cap contracts in place.
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JB Hi-Fi Limited
Notes to the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following principal subsidiaries

in accordance with the accounting policy described below:

Name of entity

Parent entity

JB Hi-Fi Limited »

Subsidiaries

JB Hi-Fi Group Pty Ltd #

Clive Anthonys Pty Ltd

JB Hi-Fi (A) Pty Ltd ~

Rocket Replacements Pty Ltd

JB Hi-Fi Education Solutions Pty Ltd #

JB Hi-Fi Group (NZ) Limited

JB Hi-Fi NZ Limited

JB Hi-Fi (B) Pty Ltd #

The Muir Electrical Company Pty Ltd A

The Muir Electrical Service Co Pty Ltd #
The Good Guys Discount Warehouses (Australia) Pty Ltd *
Muir Group Employee Share Plan Pty Ltd *
The Muir Finance Company Pty Ltd #
M.E.W. (Australia) Pty Ltd A

The Muir Electrical Company Pty Ltd as Trustee of the Muir Investment

Unit Trust A

The Good Guys Discount Warehouses (Australia) Pty Ltd as Trustee of

the various store Trusts
Home Services Network Pty Ltd #

Notes:

(i)  JB Hi-Fi Limited is the head entity within the tax consolidated group.
(ii)  All Australian entities are members of the tax consolidated group.

(i) Entities identified with "' are party to a deed of cross guarantee.

(iv) The Company also has a trust to administer the Company's share options plans and variable reward plan. This trust is

Country of
incorporation

Australia

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
New Zealand
New Zealand
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

Australia

Australia
Australia

consolidated, as the substance of the relationship is that the trust is controlled by the Company.

(a) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Ownership interest

2023
%

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100

100
100

Subsidiaries are all entities which are controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

* has power over the investee;

+ is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

2022
%

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. Intercompany
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised

losses are also eliminated. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the separate

financial statements of JB Hi-Fi Limited.
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Notes to the financial statements

23 Deed of cross guarantee

The subsidiaries identified with a 'A" in note 22 are parties to a deed of cross guarantee under which each Company
guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in accordance with the deed of cross guarantee. By entering into
the deed, the subsidiaries who are party to the deed have been relieved from the requirement to prepare and lodge an
audited financial report under ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and balance
sheet of the entities party to the deed of cross guarantee are provided as follows:

(a) Consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

2023 2022
$m $m

Statement of profit or loss
Revenue 6,679.8 6,330.9
Cost of sales (5,173.8) (4,920.3)
Gross profit 1,506.0 1,410.6
Other income 315.6 327.6
Sales and marketing expenses (734.6) (655.0)
Occupancy expenses (222.5) (208.5)
Administration expenses (37.4) (33.5)
Finance costs (19.5) (14.1)
Other expenses (64.4) (56.8)
Profit before income tax 743.2 770.3
Income tax expense (223.1) (229.4)
Profit for the year 520.1 540.9

2023 2022

$m $m

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Profit for the year 520.1 540.9
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 520.1 540.9
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23 Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

(b) Balance sheet

2023 2022
$m $m

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 152.3 111.6
Trade and other receivables 134.8 113.0
Inventories 718.1 793.2
Other current assets 33.4 30.3
Total current assets 1,038.6 1,048.1
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 119.2 114.8
Right-of-use assets 514.0 461.6
Deferred tax assets 112.7 103.0
Intangible assets 77.9 77.9
Investments in subsidiaries 911.8 911.8
Other non-current assets 353.4 337.5
Total non-current assets 2,089.0 2,006.6
Total assets 3,127.6 3,054.7
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 658.5 714.5
Deferred revenue 149.2 162.0
Lease liabilities 168.4 162.0
Current tax liabilities 4.3 53.9
Provisions 113.8 108.1
Total current liabilities 1,094.2 1,200.5
Non-current liabilities
Deferred revenue 106.9 94.7
Lease liabilities 413.5 370.8
Provisions 311 31.5
Borrowings 49.8 59.4
Total non-current liabilities 601.3 556.4
Total liabilities 1,695.5 1,756.9
Net assets 1,432.1 1,297.8
Equity
Contributed equity 340.5 358.0
Reserves 24.2 21.8
Retained earnings 1,067.4 918.0
Total equity 1,432.1 1,297.8
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24 Parent entity

Parent Entity
2023 2022
$m $m

Assets
Current assets 361.2 518.7
Non-current assets 46.2 46.1
Total assets 407.4 564.8
Liabilities
Current liabilities 10.8 60.0
Non-current liabilities 0.2 0.2
Total liabilities 11.0 60.2
Shareholders' equity
Contributed equity 329.3 346.8
Reserves 26.4 24.0
Retained earnings 40.7 133.8

396.4 504.6
Profit for the year 277.3 551.1
Total comprehensive income 277.3 551.1

25 Related party transactions

(a) Parent entity and equity interests in related parties

The parent entity of the Group is JB Hi-Fi Limited, a listed public company, incorporated in Australia.
(b) Equity interests in related parties

Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 22.

(c) Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in the Directors' report.

(d) Transactions within the Group

During the reporting period and previous reporting periods, entities within the Group advanced amounts to, received and
repaid amounts from, and provided treasury, accounting, legal, taxation, and administrative services to other entities
within the Group. Entities within the Group also exchanged goods and services in sale and purchase transactions.

All transactions occurred on the basis of normal commercial terms and conditions. Balances and transactions between
entities within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.
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Other Disclosures

26 Key management personnel disclosures

The aggregate compensation of the key management personnel of the Group is set out below:
Consolidated

2023 2022

$'000 $'000
Short-term employee benefits 7,337 7,191
Post-employment benefits 214 207
Share-based payments expense 5,013 4,084
12,564 11,482

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 49.

27 Share-based payments
(a) Group share option plans

The Group has ownership-based remuneration schemes for executives and non-executive management (excluding
non-executive directors). In accordance with the provisions of these schemes, executives and non-executive managers
within the Group are granted options to purchase parcels of ordinary shares at zero exercise price.

Details of the features of outstanding share options are provided in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 49.

The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under the Group's share option plans at the beginning
and end of the financial year:

Exercised/ Vested and

Balance at Granted lapsed Balance exercisable
startof  during during atendof atend of
the year the year theyear theyear the year
Number Number Number Number Number

2023
Outstanding Zero Exercise Price Options 497,981 187,754 (215,293) 470,442 16,029
2022
Outstanding Zero Exercise Price Options 785,543 156,818 (444,380) 497,981 10,177

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at the end of the period was 1,101 days
(2022: 1,032 days).

Fair value of options granted

Equity settled share-based payments with employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at grant
date. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended 30 June 2023 was $35.83 (2022:
$41.97). The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the
exercise price, the term of the option, the expected exercise date based on prior years' experience, the share price at
grant date, the expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate.

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The expected price volatility for options granted during the year ended 30 June 2023 is based on the daily closing share
price for the number of years preceding the issue of the series, that matches the years to vesting as all of these options
are expected to be exercised as soon as they vest.

Detailed share option disclosures for all options series granted and exercised during the year are provided in the
remuneration report on pages 32 to 49.
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27 Share-based payments (continued)
(a) Group share option plans (continued)
Share-based payments expense

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in the equity-settled benefits reserve. Upon vesting of equity-settled benefits, the expense recognised in the
equity-settled benefits reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

At each reporting date the Group estimates the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest is based on management's assessment of the likelihood of the vesting conditions
attached to the equity instruments being satisfied. The key vesting condition that is assessed is the required service
periods. The impact of any revision in the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest is recognised as an
adjustment to the share-based payments expense with the corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled benefits
reserve in the reporting period that the revision is made.

(b) Variable reward plan

In the 2019 financial year, the Group introduced a Variable Reward Plan (VRP) for Group Executives which replaces
their previous short-term and long-term incentives. Under the VRP, performance is assessed at the end of each financial
year against a scorecard of robust measures, and awards under the VRP are generally delivered:

*  25% in cash at the end of the one-year performance period; and
* 75% in restricted shares, to be released progressively in equal tranches over years 2, 3 and 4.

There are also certain non-Group Executives who participate in the VRP in addition to their existing short-term and
long-term incentives, however the whole amount is delivered in restricted shares that are released progressively in equal
tranches over years 2, 3 and 4. Further details on the VRP are set out in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 49.

The component of the VRP that is paid in cash is treated as a bonus and is expensed to the profit and loss in the period
the bonus is earned. The component of the VRP that is delivered in shares is expensed on a straight line basis over the
restriction period of each tranche, with the expense recorded as part of the share-based payments expense and a
corresponding increase in the equity-settled benefits reserve. Upon vesting of the equity-settled benefits, the expense
recognised in the equity-settled benefits reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

28 Remuneration of auditors

Consolidated

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Audit or review of financial statements
Audit and review of Group financial statements 734 695
Audit and review of subsidiary financial statements 36 35
Total audit or review of financial statements 770 730
Statutory assurance services required by legislation to be provided by the auditor 10 9
Other services
Tax compliance services 12 226
Accounting advisory services - 10
Total other services 22 245
Total remuneration for audit and other services 792 975

The auditor of the Group is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
During the current and prior financial years the Group also engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to assist with certain

pre-acquisition tax matters associated with The Good Guys. The fees associated with these services will be paid for by
the previous owner and there will be no cost to the Group, hence they have not been included in the summary above.
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29 Summary of other significant accounting policies

The remaining principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements that have not
already been disclosed are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Company's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars, which is JB Hi-Fi Limited's functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss, except when they are deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges, or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

(i) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

« assets and liabilities presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

» income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

(b) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable, to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

(c) New accounting standards and interpretations

The Group has adopted all relevant new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board which are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2022. None of the new standards or amendments to standards that are mandatory for the first time materially affected
any of the amounts recognised in the current period or any prior period.
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29 Summary of other significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

The effects of the following Standards and Interpretations that are issued but not yet effective are not expected
to be material:

() AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards: Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture, AASB 2015-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -
Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 and AASB 128, AASB 2017-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 and AASB 128 and Editorial Corrections (effective 1 January
2025)

(i) AASB 17 Insurance Contracts and AASB 2020-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Insurance
Contracts (effective 1 January 2023). In reaching this conclusion the Group notes that extended warranty does not
fall within the scope of AASB 17 and the Group does not provide any form of self-insurance.

(iii) AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current and AASB 2020-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current - Deferral of Effective Date (effective 1 January 2023)

(iv) AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition of
Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023)

(v) AASB 2021-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction (effective 1 January 2023)

(vi) AASB 2022-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Initial Application of AASB 17 and AASB 9 -
Comparative Information (effective 1 January 2023)

(d) New sustainability reporting standards

In June 2023 the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) published two sustainability reporting standards in
response to the demand for better information about sustainability related matters.

The standards issued were:

+ IFRS S1 ‘General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information’. IFRS S1 sets out
overall requirements with the objective to require an entity to disclose information about its sustainability-related risks
and opportunities that is useful to the primary users of general purpose financial reports in making decisions relating
to providing resources to the entity.

* IFRS S2 ‘Climate-related Disclosures’. IFRS S2 sets out the requirements for identifying, measuring and disclosing
information about climate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial
reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

The Australian climate related financial disclosure requirements are still being finalised, however disclosures are
expected to be closely aligned with the ISSB Standards, with Australian equivalents to be set by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) considering Australian-specific requirements. Based on the current proposals, the
climate related disclosure requirements are expected to first apply to the Group for the financial year ending 30 June
2025.

Whilst there are currently no mandatory climate related reporting requirements, the Group recognises the importance of
environmental and social matters to its shareholders, suppliers and customers and discloses a significant amount of
information on these topics in its annual Sustainability Reports. The Group’s 2023 Sustainability Report has been
released to the ASX at the same time as this report and can be found on the Company’s investor website at
http://investors.jbhifi.com.au in the “Corporate Social Responsibility” section.

30 Events occurring after the reporting period

There have been no other matters or circumstances occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year, that have
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state
of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

93



JB Hi-Fi Limited
Additional securities exchange information
The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 7 August 2023.
A. Distribution of equity securities
Analysis of numbers of equity security holders by size of holding:

Ordinary shares

% Issued

Holding Total Holders Units Capital
1-1,000 33,058 8,882,949 8.12
1,001 - 5,000 5,313 10,776,058 9.86
5,001 - 10,000 381 2,657,904 2.43
10,001 - 100,000 176 4,145,776 3.79
100,001 and over 26 82,871,294 75.80

38,954 109,333,981 100.00
All shares above are fully paid ordinary shares. Each fully paid ordinary share carries one voting right.
There were 623 holders of less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares.
B. Equity security holders
Twenty largest quoted equity security holders
The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:
Name Ordinary shares

% of issued
Number held shares
1. HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 30,738,636 28.11
2. J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED 28,485,943 26.05
3. CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 11,151,888 10.20
4. NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 3,341,111 3.06
5. BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <DRP> 2,087,107 1.91
6. AUSTRALIAN FOUNDATION INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED 1,131,264 1.03
7. BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <AGENCY LENDING DRP A/C> 915,000 0.84
8. DUERRIWARRH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 672,500 0.62
9. WARBONT NOMINEES PTY LTD <UNPAID ENTREPOT A/C> 663,266 0.61
10. BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD HUB24 CUSTODIAL SERV LTD <DRP A/C> 393,929 0.36
11. HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED <NT-COMNWLTH SUPER
CORP A/C> 369,960 0.34
12. CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <COLONIAL FIRST STATE INV A/C> 343,229 0.31
13. CPU SHARE PLANS PTY LIMITED 335,181 0.31
14. 3RD WAVE INVESTORS PTY LTD 250,000 0.23
15. NETWEALTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED <WRAP SERVICES A/C> 243,612 0.22
16. MIRRABOOKA INVESTMENTS LIMITED 231,832 0.21
17. BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD ACF CLEARSTREAM 219,579 0.20
18. UBS NOMINEES PTY LTD 190,603 0.17
19. BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <GLOBAL MARKETS DRP> 178,778 0.16
20. SCCASP HOLDINGS PTY LTD <H & R SUPER FUND A/C> 175,400 0.16
82,118,818 75.10
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C. Substantial holders

Substantial holders in the Company are set out below:

Number  Voting Power

held %

Ordinary shares
AustralianSuper Pty Ltd 15,952,471 14.59
Blackrock 8,179,096 7.48
State Street Corporation 7,993,556 7.31
Vanguard IM 5,746,950 5.26
D. Unquoted equity securities

Number Number

on issue of holders
Employee share options issued under the Company's share option plans 467,947 176
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Company secretary
Doug Smith

Principal registered office in Australia
Podium Level

60 City Road, Southbank VIC 3006
Phone: +61 3 8530 7333

Share registry

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

Yarra Falls, 452 Johnston Street

Abbotsford, Victoria, 3067, Australia

Phone: 1300 302 417 (Australia) or +61 3 9415 4136
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